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Corporate Information

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.chicheung.com

STOCK CODE

112

BOARD LOT

2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Investor Relations Manager

Tel: (852) 2866 6999

Fax: (852) 2866 2822
(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Matthew CHEONG, Veng-va, aged 50, has been an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company since March 2006. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor Degree (Honours) in Computer Science and a Master Degree in
Science. He is due to complete his Engineering Doctorate Degree. He is a
chartered engineer in the Royal Institute of Measurement and Control. Mr.

Cheong has over 22 years of experience in the management and operations.

Ms. Teresa POON, Mun-chie, aged 37, has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March 2006. Ms. Poon holds
a Bachelor Degree in Architectural Studies and a Master Degree in Architecture.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Ms. Poon is a
registered architect in Hong Kong and an authorized person under the List of
Architects of the Building Authority. Ms. Poon has over 12 years of experience

in the management and development of property projects.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAl Yun-hung, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company respectively since December 2006. Mr. Lai is a partner of Lai &
Wong, Certified Public Accountants. He has over 28 years of experience in audit
and provision of tax advice in audit firms, with exposure in listed and unlisted
companies engaging in various industries including banks, financial institutions,
manufacturing and trading companies, travel agencies and solicitors’ firms.
Mr. Lai is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants respectively. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Lung Cheong International Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. MOK, Hon-sang, aged 59, joined the Company in 2004. He is a
member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Mok is the managing director of Cafe Royce Limited. Mr. Mok has engaged

in retailing, financing, property investment and development for over 28 years.

Mr. WONG, Tik-tung, aged 51, joined the Company in 2004. He is the
Chairman of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is the chief financial officer and executive director of Wo
Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive EENSRITHRAEEN

SENIOR EXECUTIVE RRITERAE

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 52, joined the Company in 2000 and is the MABRE 5257 REZZFNBARA] -
Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company, Chinese WERRA - EABEEE (KRB ZHAF])
Estates Holdings Limited (the holding company of the Company) and G-Prop CECEEBRAR(ARRZRARMBAR) Z
(Holdings) Limited (a fellow subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Lam is a qualified B KRR ARIWE - ML ABZESTR -
accountant and holds a Master Degree in Business Administration. He has over FALIMEERE TS0 o« MARE - BB LEsT
30 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting. FHERES =R -
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Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2007 (the "Year") to the

shareholders.

RESULTS

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year was HK$107.7
million (2006: HK$94.3 million). Earnings per share for the Year recorded at
HK31.78 cents (2006: HK27.85 cents).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years 2007 and 2006, nor has

any dividend been proposed since the balance sheet date.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 9th May, 2008 to 15th May,
2008, both days inclusive. For the purpose of ascertaining the members’
entitlement to the attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, all share transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong
Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 8th May, 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Investment Properties and Properties Held for Sale

Gemstar Tower, Hung Hom (100% interests) — The property is currently a 20-
storey godown building. During the Year, the Group disposed of 9 godown
units. As at 31st December, 2007, the Group held 16 godown units on various
floors with a total gross floor area of approximately 84,211 square feet and 50
carparking spaces. As at 31st December, 2007, the occupancy rate of godown
was 5.76%.

Inter-Continental Plaza, Tsim Sha Tsui (50% interests) — The property is a 15-
storey commercial building. The Group has interests in two office floors and a
flat roof with a total gross floor area of approximately 22,204 square feet and
1,876 square feet respectively. As at 31st December, 2007, the two office

floors were 80.69% let.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Investment Properties and Properties Held for Sale (cont'd)

No.

1 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong (33'/5% interests) — The property is a 33-

storey industrial building. The Group has interests in various portions on various

floors with a total gross floor area of approximately 541,048 square feet and

77 carparking spaces as at 3 1st December, 2007.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

0)

(ii)

(ii)

As announced by the Company on 17th January, 2008, the Group
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”) to dispose of shareholding
interests of and loans to certain subsidiaries of the Company subject to

the approval of the independent shareholders of the Company.

For further details, please refer to the Company’'s announcements dated
17th January, 2008, 5th February, 2008 and 6th March, 2008.

During the Year, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose a godown unit of a property held for sale at a
consideration of HK$17 million. The disposal was completed on 16th
January, 2008.

In addition, the Company announced on 1st February, 2008 that the
major transaction made on 23rd March, 2007 concerning acquisition of
50% shareholding in and shareholder’s loan due from Canaria Holding
Limited and the loan due from Earn Elite Development Limited was
terminated as the vendor and debt vendor could not fulfil the conditions
precedent by 31st January, 2008. The termination of the transaction
would not have any material adverse effect on the business operation and

financial position of the Group.

PROSPECTS

The current low interest rate helps promote the sale of properties of the Group.

The Group expects that it will be benefited from the positive economic growth

and stable development on properties market in Hong Kong.

For the year, the cash position of the Group remains abundant. Subject to the

approval of the independent shareholders, the expected sale to Chinese Estates

of shareholding interests of and loans to a certain subsidiaries will generate

additional fund. The Company is looking for other appealing opportunities for

investment.
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Chairman’s Statement FERESE

APPRECIATION B

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders for their RAEEGBESERE—FUARNE N ZFRE
continuing support. | also thank my fellow directors and staff members for their BERENE TIBHANEEN N FRHE -

dedication and hard work.

On behalf of the Board REEEZ
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va TiE
Chairman EE

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2008 FE - —ETN\F=AXH



Financial Operation Review

RESULTS

Turnover for the year ended 31st December, 2007 (the “Year") rose to HK$70
million (2006: HK$2.9 million). Gross profit increased to HK$44.7 million
(2006: HK$1.7 million). Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the Year was HK$107.7 million compared to HK$94.3 million in last year.
The improved results were primarily due to disposal of trading development
properties during the Year, which included certain units of Gemstar Tower and

Meeco Industrial Building.

The property development segment was the key revenue contributor during
the Year under review. Turnover recorded at HK$67.3 million (2006: Nil). For
property leasing, rental income for the Year amounted to HK$2.7 million (2006:
HK$2.9 million).

Fair value changes on investment properties for the Year amounted to HK$5.1
million, down from HK$14.9 million in last year. Included in current year results
were write-backs of allowance for amounts due from associates and former
associates of HK$1.7 million (2006: HK$0.9 million). Other operating expenses
increased to HK$6.5 million as a result of various acquisition and reorganisation

activities carried out during the Year.

Share of the results of associates for the Year recorded at HK$62.5 million
(2006: HK$84.9 million). This result reflected moderate increase in the fair
value gain on investment properties held by the associates. The Group shared
from the associates an increase in fair value on investment properties of
HK$52 million after the offset impact of deferred tax of HK$11 million (2006:
HK$80.4 million after the offset impact of deferred tax of HK$16.6 million).
During the Year, the Group shared gain on disposal of investment properties
from an associate of HK$1.2 million (2006: Nil).

Earnings per share for the Year recorded at HK31.8 cents (2006: HK27.9

cents).

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2007, the net assets attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$869.1 million, representing an increase of
HK$107.6 million or 14.1% compared to HK$761.5 million in preceding year.
The increase was due to profit retained for the Year. Net assets per share to
equity holders of the Company was HK$2.57 (2006: HK$2.25).
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Financial Operation Review

DEBT AND GEARING

The Group continued to maintain a strong capital and cash position for the
Year. As at 31st December, 2007, cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$274.2 million (2006: HK$187.9 million). The Group did not have any bank
borrowings (2006: Nil). The majority of the Group's income for the Year was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and no hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars

assets or investment has been made during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2007, no asset was pledged by the Group to secure
any banking facility and the Group did not have any obligations under banking

facility documentation.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 3 1st December,
2007.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income for the Year increased to HK$14 million (2006: HK$12.8
million) which included an imputed interest income of HK$0.9 million (2006:
HK$0.9 million). The Group recorded an imputed interest expense relating
to interest-free loan from the minority shareholder of HK$0.1 million (2006:
HK$0.1 million).

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group employed a total of 13 staff.
Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages comprised salary
and year-end discretionary bonus based on market conditions and individual
performance. The directors of the Company continued to review employees’
contributions and to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for

their better commitment and performance.

No share option scheme was adopted for the Year.
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Financial Operation Review

PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified professional surveyors, in respect of the Group's
investment properties held as at 31st December, 2007 and that valuation
was used in preparing this year's financial statements. The Group's investment
properties were valued at HK$57.5 million, the net increase in fair value of
approximately HK$5.1 million was credited to the income statement for the
Year. The Group also shared an increase in fair value on investment properties
of the associates of HK$52 million (net of deferred tax impact of HK$11
million). Development properties and non-investment properties were stated at

cost less impairment, if any, in the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) present to the
shareholders their report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3 1st December,
2007 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31st

December, 2007 are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 39.

No interim dividend was declared for the Year (2006: Nil) and the Board did
not recommend any payment of final dividend for the Year (2006: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to profit for the Year by its

principal activities is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 102.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the investment properties during the Year are set out in note 16

to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out in

note 17 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Movements in the properties held for development during the Year are set out

in note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Movements in the property interests held for development during the Year are

set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Movements in the prepaid lease payments during the Year are set out in note

20 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 3 1st December, 2007 are
set out on pages 103 to 108.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in

note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are

set out on page 42 and in note 32 to the financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
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Directors’ Report

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, no charitable donations have been made by the Group (2006:
Nil).

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 30% and 95% of the Group's total turnover

for the Year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company's issued shares) had a beneficial interests in any of the Group's five

largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va (Chairman)

Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company's Articles of Association, Ms.
Teresa Poon, Mun-chie and Mr. Mok, Hon-sang will retire and being eligible,

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE(S)" INTERESTS
IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2007, none of the Directors or chief executive(s) of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules™). During the Year, none of the Directors or chief executive(s) of the
Company nor their spouses or children under the age of 18 years were granted
or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company or its

associated corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2007, so far as are known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following parties (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, as
being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be interested in 5% or

more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Number of Shares

Name (ordinary share)
=18 BROHE (EER)
Billion Up Limited 209,931,186
(note 1)
(MEET)
Lucky Years Ltd. 209,931,186
(note 1)
(BiEE1)
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited 209,931,186
FEABELE (note 1)
(MHEE1)
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 209,931,186
260 S (note 2)

(FFzE2)
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Directors’ Report EEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS INTHE T ERERN AN T 2 B E5#EZ

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Percentage

Number of Shares of Issued

Name (ordinary share) Capacity Share Capital

8 RBHE (EER) 14 BRITRAT DL

Global King Ltd. 209,931,186 Trustee 61.96%
(note 3) BEFEA

(M3 3)

GZ Trust Corporation 209,931,186 Trustee and 61.96%
(note 3) Beneficiary of a Trust
(fF7E3) EREAR—IBEEFEIEHA

Mr. Li Ka-shing 20,827,142 Founder of Discretionary 6.15%
TERHLE (notes 4 & 5) Trusts and Interests of
(MisE4 & 5) Controlled Corporations
BIEEFEZBISA R
RSN E 2 R

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited 20,827,142 Trustee and 6.15%
(notes 4 & 5) Beneficiary of a Trust
(MI3E 4} 5) EREAR—IEEFZEHA

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited 20,827,142 Trustee and 6.15%
(notes 4 & 5) Beneficiary of a Trust
(M54 K5) BFEREAR—EHEFRZZEA

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited 20,827,142 Trustee 6.15%
(notes 4 & 5) BFEA

(KsEa & 5)

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited 20,827,142 Interests of 6.15%
RIEZE(KE)BRAR (notes 4 & 5) Controlled Corporations
(MI3E4 K 5) VRSN A2 s

Hutchison Whampoa Limited 20,827,142 Interests of 6.15%
MEEHERAA (note 4) Controlled Corporations
(MF3E4) SPERAE) 2 s

Hutchison International Limited 20,827,142 Interests of a 6.15%
MEhEBRAT (note 4) Controlled Corporation
(ff7E4) —MEEH AT s

Primetek Holdings Limited 20,827,142 Beneficial Owner 6.15%
(note 4) E=mEAA

(Hf7x4)



Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes:

1. Billion Up Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lucky Years Ltd., which in turn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Estates”). By virtue of the SFO, Lucky Years Ltd. and Chinese Estates were deemed
to be interested in the 209,931,186 shares of the Company held by Billion Up
Limited.

2. Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung, by virtue of his approximately 53.48% interests in the
issued share capital of Chinese Estates, was deemed to be interested in the same
interests stated against Chinese Estates under the SFO.

3. GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of a discretionary trust held units in a unit trust
of which Global King Ltd. is the trustee. Global King Ltd. is entitled to exercise
more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of Chinese
Estates. Accordingly, Global King Ltd. and GZ Trust Corporation were deemed to
be interested in the same interests stated against Chinese Estates by virtue of the
SFO.

4. Primetek Holdings Limited (“Primetek”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hutchison
International Limited (“HIL"), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were
deemed to be interested in the 20,827,142 shares of the Company held by
Primetek.

5. Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, Mr. Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in one-third of the entire
issued share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1"). TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust
("UT1"), together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at
their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the
general meetings of HWL.
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Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)

Notes: (cont'd)

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire issued share
capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1") as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1") and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited (“TDT2") as trustee of another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1
and TDT2 holds units in the UTT.

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settlor of DT1 and DT2 may be
regarded as a founder of DT1 and DT2 and for the purpose of the SFO, each of
Mr. Li Ka-shing, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and CKH was deemed to be interested in the
20,827,142 shares of the Company held by Primetek.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st December,
2007, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, or any of its ultimate holding company's subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefit by means of the acquisition of shares

in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS' AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” as mentioned below,
there were no contracts of significance in relation to the Company's business,
to which the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party,
subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which
a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there
were any other contracts of significance in relation to the Company's business
between the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries and a controlling

shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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Directors’ Report

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Chinese Estates, a substantial shareholder under the Listing
Rules, to dispose of certain assets in Hong Kong in exchange for the certain
assets of Chinese Estates in the People’s Republic of China, the transaction
under which would generate a net consideration of some HK$9,760.7 million
to be settled by the Company by means of cash and convertible bonds to
Chinese Estates (the “Conditional Agreement”). The transactions contemplated
under the Conditional Agreement constituted a connected transaction of the

Company.

Since the Conditional Agreement was not approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company, the Conditional Agreement and the transactions

contemplated thereunder has been terminated on 28th November, 2007.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected transactions

under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31st December, 2007, none of the Directors were interested in any
business, which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,

with the Company's businesses.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(1)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the "MPF

Scheme”); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “Top-up

Scheme”).

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their respective

trustees accordingly.
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Directors’ Report

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (cont'd)

The MPF Scheme was available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with at
least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong Kong.
Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's relevant
income. The statutory maximum level of relevant income for contribution
purpose is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their length
of service with the Group, but the benefit was required by law to be preserved
until the retirement age of 65. Forfeited contributions of MPF Scheme cannot

be used by the Group to offset the existing level of contributions.

The Top-up Scheme was available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the Top-
up Scheme were made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of staff's basic
salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group’s mandatory
contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group's contributions together with accrued returns after completing
10 years of service or more, or attaining the retirement age, or were entitled
at a reduced scale between 30% to 90% of the Group's contributions after
completing a period of service of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The
Top-up Scheme allowed any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for
any staff member who subsequently left the Top-up Scheme prior to vesting
fully in such contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level

of contributions of the Group.

The Group's cost for the MPF scheme charged to consolidated income
statement for the Year amounted to HK$152,000 (2006: HK$87,000).

During both years, no employee of the Group was entitled to the benefit of
the Top-up Scheme and no contributions had been made by the Group to the

Top-up Scheme.
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Directors’ Report

ADVANCES TO ENTITIES

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had made advances to associated
companies of approximately HK$125.1 million (before provision). The
shareholder loans had been granted either for financing their acquisition of
assets or daily operations. The shareholder loans are unsecured, with no

specific maturity dates and are repayable on demand.

Pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules, the Company discloses details of

the loans advanced to the entities as at 31st December, 2007 as below:-

Attributable

Name of associated interest held
companies by the Group Interest
BMENTREH rEEREZ rates
EibER Fl=
% %
Finedale Industries Limited 33/, Prime - 2.75
B EEERAF BEENER 2.75
Canaria Holding Limited 50 N/A
A
Earn Elite Development Limited 50 6.75

B ERARRAR
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Interest- Non-interest Total
bearing bearing advances
FE FErE BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
66,706 - 66,706

- 48,909 48,909

9,500 = 9,500

76,206 48,909 125,115
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PROFORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET OF THE
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, a proforma combined balance
sheet of the affiliated companies with financial assistance from the Group as at

31st December, 2007 (the latest practicable date) is presented below:

Non-current assets ERENEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE
Net assets BEFE

Note: Proforma combined balance sheet has been adjusted so as to align with the
Group's accounting policies.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company and the annual results of the Group for the Year had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

mht
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(Note) Interest
Combined attributable
total to the Group
(B 3E) #5%E
aOHaE it R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
1,436,000 461,667
14,450 3919
(34,975) (11,551)
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922,521 328,656
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Directors’ Report

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the prescribed
amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of this report as

required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, who will
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment, as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2008
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of the Company together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interest in general. The Board endeavours to ensure effective self-
regulatory practices, to maintain sound internal control system and to absorb

high calibre members to the Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to shareholders
how the Company has applied the principles in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout
the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 (the “Year").

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Code to enhance corporate

governance in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company during the Year.
In addition, the Company has a separate written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for the relevant employees of the Company
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in

respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for directing and supervising the Company's affairs.
Each Director acts in good faith for the best interest of the Company. The
Directors are collectively and individually responsible to the Company for the
manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed, controlled and
operated. They had devoted sufficient time and attention to the Company's

affairs during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)") which represent more than one-third of
the Board. The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company's website.
There is no relationship among members of the Board and in particular, between
the chairman and the chief executive officer. The INEDs are highly experienced
professionals and businessmen with a broad range of expertise and experience
in accounting, finance and business management and one of them has
appropriate professional qualification as required by the Stock Exchange. During
the Year, they had participated in Board meetings to bring independent opinion
and judgement on Company'’s strategy, performance and standards of conduct;
had taken the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise; had served on
Board committees; had ensured that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting; and had provided adequate checks
and balance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders in general and the

Company as a whole.

The Company has received, from each INED, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company

considers that all of the INEDs are independent.

Throughout their period in office, the Directors were informed of the Group's
business, the competitive and regulatory environments in which it operates and
other changes affecting the Group and the industry it operates in as a whole.
They were also advised on appointment of their legal and other duties and
obligations as directors of a listed company and updated on changes to the
legal and governance requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the

Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to carry

out their responsibilities from time to time.

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be included in
the meeting agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant information as well as
reports relating to operational and financial performance of the Group before
each regular Board meeting. At least 14 days' notice of a regular Board meeting
is given to all Directors to provide them with the opportunity to attend. Board
papers are dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the same and will be adequately
prepared for the meeting. Senior management is invited to the meeting to
address the Board members' queries. This enables the Board to have pertinent
data and insight for a comprehensive and informed evaluation as part of the

Board's decision-making purpose.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

The Chairman has delegated the responsibility to the Company Secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) for drawing up and approving the meeting
agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account of any matters proposed by

the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored by the
Chairman who ensures that sufficient time is allocated for discussion and
consideration of each item on the agenda. Equal opportunities are given to the

Directors to express their views and concerns.

Each Director has to declare his/her interest and to abstain from voting on any
board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association and the Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong).

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board's procedures, rules and regulations are followed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in sufficient details
were sent to the Directors for comments and records within reasonable time
after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for

inspection by the Directors on reasonable notice.

Four regular Board meetings were held on 13th March, 3rd July, 2nd August
and 23rd November for the Year. The Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant
and the Company's senior management had attended the Board meetings to
report matters arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business. The individual attendance of each

Director at the regular Board meetings held during the Year is as follows:

No. of regular Board meetings

attended/held

(Percentage of

Directors attendance in total)
Executive Directors

4/4 (100%)

4/4 (100%)

Mr. Matthew Cheong, Veng-va (Chairman)

Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung 4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)

4/4 (100%)

Mr. Mok, Hon-sang
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont'd)

The INEDs had actively participated in the Board meetings, brought independent
judgement and given their comments to the information or reports submitted
to the meetings. The INEDs also constituted the members of the independent
board committees to consider the major transaction, very substantial acquisition,

very substantial disposal and connected transactions of the Company during the Year.

To enhance the Director's consciousness on the importance of the directors’
duties under common law and to comply with the requirement of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), a “Non-statutory
Guidelines on Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a director should
follow in the performance of his/her functions and exercise of his/her powers

has been distributed to the Directors.

AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

In order to comply with the Code's requirements on the appointment of the
non-executive Directors for a specified term and having all Directors (including
those appointed for a specific term) to retire by rotation at least once every three
years, a special resolution was passed at the 2007 annual general meeting of
the Company to amend the articles of association by providing that no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of 3 years, or past the third
annual general meeting, following the Director's appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself for re-election at the annual

general meeting.

As a result of amendment of the articles of association of the Company, every
Director now has been appointed for a specific term and all Directors shall retire

by rotation at least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") are separate
and not performed by the same individual. As at 31st December, 2007, Mr.
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va was the Chairman with responsibility for overseeing
the function of the Board, formulating overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Ms. Teresa Poon, Mun-chie was the CEO with responsibility for
the overall business and operation of the Group. This segregation is clearly
established and set out in writing to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman's responsibility to manage the Board and the CEQ's responsibility to

manage the Group's business.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee with

defined roles and terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since December 2000 with the
role to assist the Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements
for considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal control
principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company's
auditors (the “Independent Auditors”). It acts in an advisory capacity and makes

recommendations to the Board.

All the Audit Committee members possess diversified industry experience.
The chairman has appropriate professional qualification, accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by the Listing Rules. The Audit

Committee is made up of the INEDs, namely:

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

The Audit Committee's terms of reference can be found on the Group's website.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company’'s Independent Auditors,
review and monitor their independence and objectivity as well as the

effectiveness of the audit process;

i)  to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated financial
statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports of the Company,
and to review any significant financial reporting judgements contained in

them; and

i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s financial

controls, internal control and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. The Company
prepares and delivers an information memorandum that includes all relevant
information about the meetings to the Audit Committee members at least
3 days prior to such meetings. Audit Committee members review the
information memorandum with due care and discuss with the Company's
Qualified Accountant, the Company Secretary and other senior management (if

necessary) during the meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings on 6th March, Tst August and 14th
December, 2007 with the presence of the Company's senior management
during the Year. The Audit Committee members met and discussed with
the Independent Auditors without the presence of the Company's senior
management in one of the said three meetings. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Audit Committee members for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting. Executed minutes were
kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the minutes were sent to the Audit

Committee members for records.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the Audit Committee

meetings is as follows:

No. of meetings

attended/held

(Percentage of

Members attendance in total)
Mr. Wong, Tik-tung 3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)

Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarized

below:

) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial statements for
the year ended 31st December, 2006, and interim and quarterly accounts
for 2007;

i) reviewed and discussed with the Independent Auditors in respect of the
audit fee for the year 2007; the terms of the engagement letters; the

nature, scope of audit and reporting obligations for the Year;

i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s

financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;

iv)  reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the progress

of compliance of the Code;

v)  prepared and submitted to the Board an Audit Committee Report detailing
the works performed by the Audit Committee during the Year, presented
its findings and made recommendations for considerations by the Board;

and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)
vi)  considered ad hoc important transactions such as the major transaction of

the Company and their financial implication.

On 4th March, 2008, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group accounts and

draft financial statements for the Year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since June 2005 with the
role to assist the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or broad
policy for remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management,
overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures and considering

other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all the INEDs namely:

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung (Chairman)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang

The Remuneration Committee's terms of reference can be found on the Group's

website.
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

) setting, reviewing and recommending to the Board for approving the

Group's overall remuneration policy and strategy;

i)  setting, reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration and
individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and senior
management including terms and conditions of employment as well as
compensation payable due to loss or termination of office, and dismissal

or removal for misconduct; and

i) recommending to the Board of the remuneration of Non-executive

Directors.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Chairman and/or the CEO
about its proposals on remuneration of other Executive Directors and seek

internal and external professional advices if considered necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (cont'd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 6th March, 2007 to discuss
the employees’ emolument including ratifying the discretionary bonus for the
year ended 31st December, 2006 to employees of the Company as well as
to recommend the remuneration of the INEDs for the Year to the Board for

approval.
Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting is as follows:

No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of

Members attendance in total)

Mr. Wong, Tik-tung 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Lai, Yun-hung 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Mok, Hon-sang 1/1 (100%)

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office as the
INEDs except for their entitlement of an annual remuneration of HK$140,000
determined by the Board subject to annual review with reference to the
prevailing market condition. No share option scheme is adopted by the

Company during the Year.

Nomination Committee

No Nomination Committee is established in view of the current business
requirement of the Company. Currently, the Board is responsible for reviewing
its composition, identifying and selecting suitable Board members, assessing
independence of the INEDs, considering appointment or re-appointment of the
Directors and succession planning for the Directors. The Board shall exercise its
power under Article 92 of the Articles of Association of the Company to appoint
any person as a director either to fill as casual vacancy or as an addition to the

Board whenever the business of the Company requires.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of management
and delegate daily management and administration functions to the
management. The functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
the senior management are reviewed from time to time. The Company would
formalize the division of responsibility between the Board and the management

when the operational requirement of the Group justifies such division.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") were re-appointed as the
Independent Auditors by shareholders at the 2007 annual general meeting
of the Company. In order to maintain the independence and objectivity of
the Independent Auditors (which for these purposes include any entity under
common control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity
that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or
internationally), they will not be engaged for non-audit works unless it has been
approved by the Audit Committee or the independent board committee (as may

be established under the Listing Rules from time to time) as appropriate.

The Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to supply non-
audit service such as the appointment of reporting accountants for the major
transaction, the very substantial acquisition, very substantial disposal and
connected transaction during the Year. The fundamental policy is to ensure
that the engagement of the Independent Auditors for non-audit services will
not harm their independence or cause any bias on the preparation of financial
statements of the Company on auditing. During the Year, the fee for engaging
the Independent Auditors to carry out reporting accountants works on major
transaction, very substantial acquisition, very substantial disposal and connected
transaction amounted to HK$2,425,000.

At the annual general meeting held on 15th May, 2007, HLB were re-appointed
by the shareholders as the Independent Auditors of the Company at a fee to be
agreed with the Board. The Audit Committee reviewed the terms of engagement
letter of the Independent Auditors in mid December 2007 and agreed with HLB
the audit fees for auditing the financial statements of the Group for the Year at
HK$398,000.

It is recommended that HLB shall be re-appointed as the Independent Auditors

for the financial year 2008 at a fee to be agreed with the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguard the shareholders’ and the Company's
interests as a whole and encourages shareholders to attend the general
meetings of the shareholders to participate on the important decisions of the
Company for which the shareholders’ approval is required under the Listing
Rules and the Companies Ordinance. The Company regards the general
meeting of the shareholders as an important event as it provides an important
opportunity for direct communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Directors, including the INEDs were available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting and the extraordinary general meeting held in
2007. Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
Independent Auditors and Chairman of the independent board committee were

also available at the respective meetings to address shareholders’ queries.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (cont'd)

Procedures for and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll under the articles
of association of the Company in compliance with the requirements about voting
by poll as specified in the Listing Rules were disclosed in all the Company's
circulars to shareholders in 2007. Separate resolutions for each substantially
separate issue were proposed by the chairman at the annual general meeting
and extraordinary general meeting held in 2007. The level of proxies lodged
on each resolution, and the balance for and against the resolution, after it had
been dealt with on a show of hands were indicated by the chairman of the
annual general meeting. Also, the chairman, at the commencement of the
shareholders' general meetings, explained the procedures for demanding a poll
by shareholders before putting a resolution to the vote on a show of hands, and
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then prepared to answer any
questions from shareholders whenever voting by way of a poll were required.
The results of the poll at the general meeting were made public by means of

public announcements.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group are

made available on the Company's website, which is regularly updated.

Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put forward proposals
at general meetings by way of a written notice addressed to the Company

Secretary at the registered office.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management provides explanation, information and progress update to the
Board for it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other issues

put before the Board for approval and consideration.

Throughout the Year, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which give a true and fair view
and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A statement by the
Independent Auditors about their reporting responsibilities for the Year is set out

in this annual report.

The Independent Auditors did not report for the Year that there were any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant

doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Corporate Governance Report

FINANCIAL REPORTING (cont'd)

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable assessment
of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are announced as early
as possible, with interim report and annual report as well as other price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures published as required under the

Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility for the establishment, maintenance and
review of the internal control system that provides reasonable assurance on
the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, effective
and efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and compliance with laws and
regulations. The internal control system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate all risks of failure while its goal is to provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance regarding the achievement of organizational objectives. The Audit
Committee is responsible to assist the Board for the annual review of the

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

With respect to procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that information
which is expected to be price-sensitive should be announced promptly after
it becomes known to and/or is the subject of a decision by the Directors or
senior management of the Company, and conducts its affairs with close regard
to the “Guide on disclosure of price-sensitive information” issued by the Stock
Exchange in 2002.

To ensure sufficient resources provided to the Audit Committee, information and
assessment of financial and internal controls, risk management systems were
sent to the Audit Committee members. Internal control procedures of the Group

had been commented by the committee members during the Year.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial control, internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the Year. It considered the internal
control systems effective and adequate as they allowed the Board to monitor
the Group's overall financial position and to provide reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or material financial
misstatement; transactions were executed in accordance with management's
authorization; and the accounting records were reliable for preparing financial
information used within the business or for publication and reflecting
accountability for assets and liabilities. Further reviews will be conducted on the
request of any Audit Committee members, the Company Secretary, the Qualified

Accountant and/or the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)

The Audit Committee considered that the careful management of risk as a
key management activity and concluded that the business risks, which may
be strategic, operational, reputation-related or financial, should be understood
and visible. The Board acknowledges the areas of concern and would devote
to in-depth study with senior management in each situation about the level of

acceptable risk and controls.

The Audit Committee and the Board considered that the Company had
complied with the code provisions on internal control during the Year, and the

internal control system is effective and adequate, as

- a framework of prudent and effective controls has been established to

enable risks to be identified, evaluated and managed; and

- periodic review of the system of the internal control is carried out by the

Audit Committee to ensure the effectiveness of such control.

The Company has established an Internal Audit function with the key tasks as

below:

- to review all aspects of the Group's activities and internal controls with
unrestricted right of access and direct access to any level of management

as considered necessary;

- to conduct comprehensive audits of the practices and procedures, income
and expenditures, and internal controls of all business units of the Group

on a regular basis; and

—  to conduct special reviews and investigations of areas of concern

identified by management for corrective actions.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good corporate
governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the shareholders,
including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company considers a good
investor relations as a key part of its operations and continues to promote

investor relations and enhances communications with the investors.

The Company maintains a company website (www.chicheung.com) to make
corporate information available on the internet to facilitate its communication
with shareholders and to provide important information to the investing public
on corporate governance structure, policies and systems, profiles of the Directors

and senior management as well as terms of reference of Board committees.
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Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS (cont'd)

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders, and
invites them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the investor

relations team at investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices are
essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put to review its
corporate governance practices from time to time so as to accommodate the
changing circumstances. The Company will try its best to maintain, strengthen

and improve the standard and quality of its corporate governance.

In conclusion, the Board considered that the Company had applied the principles
of the Code and complied with the code provisions and certain recommended

best practices set out in the Code throughout the Year.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Bl # & %+ 6 % 5 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHI CHEUNG INVESTMENT COMPANY, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chi Cheung
Investment Company, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 39 to 101, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December, 2007, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st December,
2007 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement e W
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 P _ET+FEF A1 —HIFE
2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FAT
Turnover EES 7 69,974 2916
Cost of sales SHE AR (25,239) (1,257)
Gross profit EF 44,735 1,659
Other revenue Emias 13,371 11,932
Other income EA 10 1,037 956
Administrative expenses TR SZ (5.887) 4,711)
Other operating expenses HAb R ERX (6.517) (638)
Fair value changes on investment properties REMEZ NHEE 16 5,061 14,874
Finance costs MEER (61) (58)
Impairment loss recognised in respect BEMT I &R R IR
of advances to associates 2R EREE 22 (573) (13,477)
Write-back of allowance for amount due B A RI R RAERS
from an associate ZEEeRE 22 - 897
Write-back of allowance for amounts due BB & N R RSB
from former associates ZEEeRE 1,720 -
Share of results of associates ey NE E 9 62,509 84,886
Profit before taxation T AT 10 115,395 96,320
Taxation 1A 11 (7.805) (2,029)
Profit for the year RFEZ 5 A 107,590 94,291
Attributable to: THIE
Equity holders of the Company RATREFEAA 107,651 94,349
Minority interest DB R M A (61) (58)
107,590 94,291
Earnings per share S eeEbl
Basic and diluted ERREE 14 31.78 cents 27.85 cents{lll

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

BREM M R A IR R 2 —#BD
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Consolidated Balance Sheet SEEEAER
As at 31st December, 2007 R-FEE+F —_H=1—H
2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P FHET FHTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties wEMZE 16 57,450 63,400
Property, plant and equipment W - BB K& 17 186 205
Prepaid lease payments T E RIS 20 9,633 9,666
Interests in associates i N ] 22(a) 390,951 329,152
Advances to associates EN NN E S 22(b) 93,391 106,911
Available-for-sale financial asset GIES ﬁ%%mﬂﬁé 23 270 270
551,881 509,604
Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale FEHEmE 24 56,304 78,483
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEUERIE ?R%&TEH JIE 25 1,871 672
Advance to the ultimate holding company EANES Sl YNCIP A 26 695 -
Taxation recoverable EEERE 3 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEERIEER 27 274,224 187,900
333,097 267,061
Current liabilities REEE
Creditors and accruals JEfTERIE K BT E 28 6,148 8,886
Deposits received Bl e 2,837 3276
Taxation payable FERT 1A 5,906 1,805
Loan from minority shareholder LEIRRER 29 1,084 -
15,975 13,967
Net current assets REBEESFE 317,122 253,094
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBEE 869,003 762,698
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loan from minority shareholder VYRR ER 29 - 1,023
Deferred taxation liabilities FERIBEE 30 964 1,235
964 2,258
Total assets and liabilities EEREEHESE 868,039 760,440
Equity L
Capital and reserves attributable RDBREFEAEMN
to equity holders of the Company RAR
Share capital [N 31 3,388 3,388
Reserves G 865,735 758,075
Equity attributable to equity AARBRAERFEA
holders of the Company FEfhEs 869,123 761,463
Minority interest DERRER (1,084) (1,023)
Total equity e 868,039 760,440

Approved by the Board of Directors on 6th March, 2008 and are signed on its KAHEFEN T N\F= A BHETH TS

behalf by: REREZE
Matthew Cheong, Veng-va BERE Teresa Poon, Mun-chie BHE
Director EF Director EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. BEMIM s AR SRR 2 — 5B °



Balance Sheet
As at 31st December, 2007

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Advances to subsidiaries
Advance to an associate

Available-for-sale financial asset

Current assets
Deposits and prepayments
Advance to the ultimate holding company

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals
Net current assets

Total assets and liabilities

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on 6th March, 2008 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Matthew Cheong, Veng-va

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes
st
FREEE
M A RIERS 21
ST B A R FUE 21
BAEE QA EIRIA 22(b)
AEHESREE 23
REBEE
e RIENFIE 25
BN REIERARIFIE 26
Re MR ERIEH 27
FBas
FESERIE R FERTE A 28
RBEEZFE
EERBEARE
%
KATRAEEHE AER
B #E
&N 3]
A 32
EREE

—EBLEEH 41

REREE

Teresa Poon, Mun-chie

Director

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
184,104 184,104
138,534 217,466
9,500 9,500
- 270
332,138 411,340
1,755 549
695 -
272,308 183,911
274,758 184,460
2,397 1,042
272,361 183,418
604,499 594,758
3,388 3,388
601,111 591,370
604,499 594,758
REBFEN_FFT/\F=A/BHEILH T

BRE

EF

BEM M R AR TR R 2 —#BD
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity AR EREEHRE

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 P EEtFEF A=, —HIFFE

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRARSEE NGRS
Contribution Minority
Share Share from  Exchange  Retained interest Total
capital  premium shareholders reserve profits Total SHBR equity
e RiiaE RRtE Eiff  REEA st B EafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK 000
TEL T FEL TiEL FER TEL FER TR
(Note)
(W)
The Group Py
At Tst January, 2006 RZZEE-A-A 3368 495,160 104,225 - 64341 667,114 (965) 666,149
Proftfor the year and totel REREHNRAER
recognised income BB EMA
for the year - - - - 94349 94349 (58) 94291
At 315t December, 2006 RZEE E+ZA=T-R
and Tt January, 2007 k=E%+5-A-H 3368 495,160 104,225 - 158,690 761,463 (1023) 760,440
Exchange difference on trandlation BEENESL
of foreign operations EiZE - - - 9 - 9 - 9
Profitfor the year and totel REREHRAER
recognised income BBz BA
for the year - - - - 107,651 107,651 (61) 107,590
At 31st December, 2007 RZBBLE+ZR=1-8 3,388 495,160 104,225 9 266,341 869,123 (1,084) 868,039
Note: M3 -

BRETEEAANR-_TT=F+—ALRATRNEER
S MEAEXERUEZ EEFENA T ERLA
NREZEH -

Contribution from shareholders represents the excess of the fair value of the net assets
acquired from Chinese Estates Holdings Limited over the consideration paid in relation to
the asset transaction completed on 7th November, 2003.

RER R AR I IRR 2 — 8B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement AP EER
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 R EE A A= —HIFFE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation Tt A 7 115,395 96,320
Adjustments for: 1B T3 EEHFE -
Share of results of associates JEAEBE N RIS (62,509) (84,886)
Interest income F 2 WA (14,052) (12,851)
Finance costs MSER 61 58
Depreciation e 19 35
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE RS R IE 33 34
Impairment loss recognised in respect of SLIERE ZIRIERER
trade receivable DERIEY e - 38
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEEHE M ERR L
properties held for sale RIEEE - 600
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FELTEE & A R FIERER 2
advances to associates DERIEY e 573 13,477
Write-back of allowance for amounts due RATE & N RIRRER 2
from former associates ek (1,720) -
Write-back of allowance for amount due BERAIRRERBZ
from an associate e qEIf At - (897)
Fair value changes on investment properties KEMEZ NTEER (5.061) (14,874)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREEN (86) (24)
Operating cash flows before movements EEESHB A 2 KR
in working capital RERE 32,653 (2,970)
Decrease in properties held for sale FREHEMER D 22,179 -
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, FEMERIE - e Rk
deposits and prepayments TEFRIE (35 0), R (1,071) 27
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accruals FERBRIBERESTER (R, S5 (2,738) 455
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received BlRE ORd),HEm (1,308) 110
Decrease in provision for a litigation claim RIEFABER D - (8,427)
Cash generated from (used in) operating activities EEBE (TR RE 49,715 (10,805)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRBEBEREH (4,068) 6)
Overseas tax refunded BRELEINIIE 96 -
Net cash generated from (used in) REEBHRSB (A REFE
operating activities 45,743 (10,811)
Investing activities REX
Increase in properties held for development YRR ZEIE I - (24,853)
Net proceeds from disposal of investment properties & 18 & YW EFTSHIR T 9,416 5,448
Interest received BHFIE 8,877 7,103
Deposit received from disposal of properties BHEY¥iES 2,550 2,819
Dividend received from an associate BUEE R RIS 710 2,020
Repayment from associates B N RIER 17,994 11,044
Repayment from former associates A& N IR 1,720 -

Net cash generated from investing activities REXKFERLTFE 41,267 3,581
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement CAHEESRER
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —TELFF+ A=+ —HIFFE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financing activities MEE
Increase in advance to B ESAIERR AR
the ultimate holding company FIEIE N (695) -
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFTAE SR (695) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RekBELEREBEAZ
and cash equivalents #hn, G ) FHE 86,315 (7,230)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERBB A 9 -
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZ2RERRAELERER
beginning of the year 187,900 195,130
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FXCHEERRESEFER 274,224 187,900
Analysis of the balances of cash RERREERFER
and cash equivalents BRI
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEFRIER 274,224 187,900

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. BEMIMI s AR SRR 2 — 55 °



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”), a company incorporated in
Bermuda with its securities listed on the Stock Exchange. The address of the
registered office of the Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information”

section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property investment and development. The principal
activities and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38

to the financial statements.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) has applied,
for the first time, a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1st January, 2007. The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in the
financial statements are set out as follows:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under
HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(FRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The adoption of the above new HKFRSs has no material impact on the results

and financial position of the Group.
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46 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited Z2&FEZEGR QT

Notes to the Financial Statements B R MYz E

For the year ended 3 Ist December, 2007 BE —FE+F T _H=1—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REETBETE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HwEZER) (48)

STANDARDS (cont'd)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1 REECBPEAEBSFERE 158 (BRI A)
(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information presented REBVGERELERNE TR BEEBERT - BAF
in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and ERBEEBGHEUERFEE2INZETERD
the relevant comparative information based on the requirements of HKAS WBR - WEAFEJBRRBEEGEE
1(Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented for the first time in the R (BETAR) REBMBMELERNE 757 2 18Rt
current year. RERBEEARAKFEZS -

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs that have been REB W KRR FHN THE BB ERER 2
issued but are not yet effective. The Group is in the process of assessing the BBV HRELER] c REFBRIFFEZENES
potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine MG ERI B RE I REEEZEN
whether these new HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how its results BB IMEERG D E L2 A RN
of operations and financial position are prepared and presented. These new ZHRBEREZVNFABERNEATE - ZEHBAY
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how the results and financial M E R gE AR R G EE M TER R 2

position are prepared and presented. SN2 HTAEE -

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements' BEGHERIE 1R MBEHREREN
(F&1&zT)

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' EAGEIRERIE 235 BEERAR
(#&1535])

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments! BEVBMEEL KEHEH
E 85k

HK(FRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions? B (BRMBHRE BDEMBEREER
REZE®)— F25 - SERER
REF 1R fRE2z 52

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements® 5 (BRI EmE REESELHE?
ZERLREe)-

BREE 125

B (BRI mE TP EHEE
ZEZEE)—

ZEE 139

/|

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes? &

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit k(BRI HRE BHEGIHEFE 195 -
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements ZRELREe)- REFDEE RS
and their Interaction® HEE 145 HEEREREA

HEZES

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009. ' RIZETAE—- A B BRI FERR AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007. 7 RIETHF = A B ERG EEHREER

*  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008. P RIETNF-A—HR BB FEERER

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008. ¢ RIZTNFEA-BR BB FEERER



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which is a collective
term that includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note 4 to the financial

statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies followed by the Group in the

preparation of the financial statements is set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial assets, financial liabilities and investment
properties, which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.
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48 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited Z2FEZEGR QT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(b)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary is presented
separately from the Group's equity therein. Minority interest consist
of the amount of those interest at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority's share in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interest of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the

losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls

another entity.

In the Company’'s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the

difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(d)

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of
changes in equity of the associate, less any impairment in the value of
individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate)
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the

relevant associate.

Investments in associates are included in the Company’s balance sheet
at cost, less any identified impairment loss. The results of the associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable during the year.

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in income statement for the year in which they

arise.

On disposal of investment properties, the gain or loss is directly

recognised in the income statement.
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50 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited ZHEBXEGRAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

®

(9)

(h)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line

method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Property interests held for development

Property interests held for development represent a right to develop
properties on a piece of land upon payment of a final amount or land
acquired pending any definite intention, and are carried at cost, less any

identified impairment losses.

Properties held for development

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production, rental, for administrative purposes or for sale, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the
construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold
land is included as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings
under construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are available for

use.

Properties held for sale
Completed properties held for sale remaining unsold at the balance

sheet date are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

0

(k)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as

expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rental payable under operating leases is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefit received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of

the Group’s cash management.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the execution of
a binding sales agreement. Payments received from the purchasers prior
to this stage are recorded as deposits received on sales of properties and

are grouped under current liabilities.
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52 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#EBXERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(U

(m)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)
Rental income from properties under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset's net carrying amount.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair values were determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair values are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which

cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(m)

(n)

(o)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currencies (cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in the exchange reserve.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as expenses as

they fall due.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when an entity of the Company and the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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54 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#BXERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(o)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets

The Company’s and the Group's financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial asset. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The

accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including debtors, deposits and prepayments) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset's recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(o)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories under HKAS
39. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in income statement. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in income statement. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse in
subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by an entity of the
Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including creditors and accruals, deposits
received and loan from minority shareholder are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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56 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#BXEGRAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(o)

(p)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a

transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

r)

)

(r)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Taxation (cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals (being
member of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include entities which
are under the significant influence of related parties of the Group where
those parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans which
are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there

is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.
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58 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#BXERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3.

(s)

®

(u)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment losses

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the

expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not recognised but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will

then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

(u) Contingent liabilities and assets (cont’d)
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset

is recognised.

(v) Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in
property development or property leasing that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in property development or property
leasing within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other

economic environments.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below.
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60 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#BXERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

4.

(a)

(b)

()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the

use of assumptions and estimates.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such information, the
Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers information

from a variety of sources including:

(i)  current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease or other

contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

(i)  recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

4,

(9

(d)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cont'd)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties (cont’d)

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence such
as current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainly in the amount and timing of the

cash flows.

If information on current or recent prices of investment properties is not
available, the fair values of investment properties are determined using
discounted cash flow valuation techniques. The Group uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance

sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management'’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared to
actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and those

reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and

condition.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment properties based on
valuation determined by qualified independent professional surveyors in

Hong Kong.

Property interests held for development

As explained in Note 19, the Group made a full provision for an
impairment loss of HK$183,381,000 in respect of property interests
held for development in Shantou in 2004.

The write-back of impairment loss to other income (if any) will rely on
the conclusive judgment of legal proceedings and the actual amount that

could be recovered from the recourse action (if necessary).
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(d)
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62 Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited ZHBXERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Group's overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's

financial performance.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to its financial risks or the

manner in which it manages and measure the risk.

(a)

Market risks

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Hong Kong dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

Price risk

The Group has financial assets which are measured at fair value at
each balance sheet date. The Group manages its exposure by closely
monitoring the price movements and the changes in market conditions

that may affect the value of these investments.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group has no significant exposure to

foreign exchange risk and price risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

5.

(b)

()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31st December,
2007 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Group's and the Company's time deposits are deposited
with banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong. For rent receivable, the
Group obtained sufficient deposits from tenants and stringent monitoring
procedures are in place to deal with overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure

spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Company has no significant credit risk as at 3 1st December, 2007.

Interest rate risk
The Group and the Company have no interest rate risk arises from bank

borrowings.

The Group and the Company have no significant interest-bearing assets
except for interest-bearing advances to associates, time deposits and
bank balances, details of which have been disclosed in Note 22 and
Note 27.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Its
advances to associates, time deposits and bank balances were issued at
fixed and variable rates. As such, the impact of the increase or decrease
in prime rate would be an effect on interest income arising from

advances to associates, time deposits and bank balances for the Group.

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest income arising from the Group's Hong Kong dollar denominated

interest-bearing advances to associates, time deposits and bank balances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

5.

()

(d)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Interest rate risk (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing advances to associates,
time deposits and bank balances at the balance sheet date. For variable-
rate assets, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of financial
assets held at the balance sheet date was held for the whole year. A 50
basis points increase or decrease in prime rate represents management's

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit before taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2007 and retained profits would decrease/
increase by HK$1,693,000 (2006:decrease/increase by HK$1,339,000).

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current

year mainly due to the increase in time deposits held.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring current and
expected liquidity requirements and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and
intended credit lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet

the Group's liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group does not have significant

exposure to liquidity risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Capital management
The Group's primarily objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising stakeholders

value through the optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may make
dividend payments, issue shares and convertible bonds, raise or repay bank

borrowings.

The Group monitors the capital structure on regular basis using the gearing
ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as bank and other borrowings divided by
total equity. The capital structure as at 31st December, 2007 and 2006 were

as follows:

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Total equity AR
Gearing ratio ERBEHLE

The Group overall strategy remains unchanged during the year. As at 31st
December, 2007, the Group was not subject to externally imposed capital

requirements.

—ZEZTLFF®R 65

Annual Report 2007

B B R Y ot
BE-FPELEF A= —FILEE

5. BBEAREE(E)

BEXEE

REMEAEBENEERE -
MeBBlEzre ) WEBHITE
wEeR o FEURARIBIR(EE

BIERASEEAE
HENAEMER

AEBRBEEBRNE S LB E EN R
B EREBERERILFELIR - RERHAR
BAREERE KE@TAET;/ TS BTG K
ARG  BRXER ?TE?K °

AEBEREABBLE  BHTEMETELS
BEE >R°’§$’Ef LR THIRIRTT R AR E B
NHERBHEFE R _ETLFER_TTRF
+=A :+—EZ’§$M§ZIDT :

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
868,039 760,440
0% 0%

FAARENEBERRETE - R
F+-A=t—R  ARETENBERHE
SRR o

+
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Notes to the Financial Statements I RER 5T

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —TF+Ff - A=+—HIFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HIEER

Business segments BEBE S

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two operating MEBEEMS AEBZEKBAIAI D AME
divisions — property development and property leasing. These divisions are the KB - EBRRRYERE - Z5IH AE

basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. EEBRREFESAER 2% -
Principal activities are as follows: FEEBEENAT :
Property development  —  Property development and sales of properties MEER— MEEREDEHEE
Property leasing —  Property rental MERE— MEEE
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: GEEG 2 DBRERT
Income statement L
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 BE-ZZtFE+-A=1+—HLEE
Property Property
development leasing  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET
Segment turnover DL ER 67,256 2,718 69,974
Segment result DEEER
— Operating results before fair value —REWEZ N EZEH
changes on investment properties R 44,159 4,710 48,869
— Fair value changes on —REMEZRFES
investment properties 600 4,461 5,061
— Segment result after fair value —REWEZ T EEHR
changes on investment properties DIAELE 44,759 9,171 53,930
Unallocated corporate income FIVE-  PA/NCILI PN 9,332
Unallocated corporate expenses VVax  PA/NCI g (11,462)
Finance costs BB ER (61)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of — BEEASHE A R FIEHR 2
advances to associates BERE - (573) (573)
Write-back of allowance for amounts due  AiTH & A Bl /R R EEE 2
from former associates BREl&%E 1,347 373 1,720
Share of results of associates JEBRE R TIEE - 62,509 62,509
Profit before taxation T AT E T 115,395
Taxation A (7.805)

Profit for the year AN & g ) 107,590
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Notes to the Financial Statements IR R MY EE
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 BE —FE+F+_H=1—HIFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. DEER (&)
Business segments (cont’d) BEEE T (F)
Balance sheet BEEAEXR
As at 31st December, 2007 R=ZZtH&+=-A=+-—H
Property Property
development leasing  Consolidated
ES EHRE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FTHET FERT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEREE 80,892 44,210 125,102
Interests in associates NS L 2y - 390,951 390,951
Advances to associates BTEEE R BIFRIA - 93,391 93,391
Unallocated corporate assets Fiax /NG| ’éi 275,534
Consolidated total assets e BEMTE 884,978
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HEEE 5,175 1,096 6,271
Unallocated corporate liabilities VAR PA/NCIN= N 10,668
Consolidated total liabilities FeaGEsE 16,939
Other information HibER
For the year ended 31st December, 2007 BE-ZZtHE+-A=+—-HILEE
Property Property
development leasing Others  Consolidated
MERR WEEE Hit mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FET
Depreciation e - - 19 19
Amortisation of TETRERIE
prepaid lease payments By 13 - 20 33
Impairment loss recognised FES N FIRUE
in respect of advances R 2 REEE
to associates - 573 - 573
Fair value changes on wEWHE 2 N FE

investment properties by (600) (4.461) - (5,061)
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Notes to the Financial Statements b e
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —TF+Ff - A=+—HIFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. DERER (&)
Business segments (cont’d) HEBE T (F)
Income statement hEE
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2006 BHE_ZEXFT_A=+—HILFE
Property Property
development leasing Consolidated
MR MERE N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Segment turnover DIEER - 2916 2,916
Segment result DEEER
— Operating results before fair value —REWEZ NFEEEE
changes on investment properties R 391) 5,889 5,498
— Fair value changes on —REWMEZATE
investment properties & - 14,874 14,874
— Segment result after fair value —REWMEZ AFEEDR
changes on investment properties ok e 391) 20,763 20,372
Unallocated corporate income P o A/NCIL N 7,649
Unallocated corporate expenses ok /NI g (3,949)
Finance costs MISER (58)
Impairment loss recognised in respect MBS D RRIERR
of advances to associates BEREIE - (13,477) (13,477)
Write-back of allowance for amount BN EIRRERZ
due from an associate Bt - 897 897
Share of results of associates it NCIE S - 84,886 84,886
Profit before taxation AT 96,320
Taxation I8 (2,029)

Profit for the year ANEF 94,291
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For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —FT+FF_A=1—HIFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. DEER (&)
Business segments (cont’d) BEEE T (F)
Balance sheet BEEAEXR
As at 31st December, 2006 R-ZTEZRF+_HA=+—H
Property Property
development leasing Consolidated
MEERE mERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEREE 102,207 53,076 155,283
Interests in associates B N TR - 329,152 329,152
Advances to associates B E R RFRIE - 106,911 106,911
Unallocated corporate assets FVox: /N ﬂ’é% 185,319
Consolidated total assets EEEPERE 776,665
Liabilities =L
Segment liabilities HEEE 1,523 10,528 12,051
Unallocated corporate liabilities VR A/NCIN= R 4,174
Consolidated total liabilities e aEeERE 16,225
Other information Hipgp
For the year ended 31st December, 2006 BE_ZTZF+_A=+—HIFE
Property Property
development leasing Others Consolidated
MEER MERE Hth ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET FHT FHT
Capital additions BZRIENN 26,386 - - 26,386
Depreciation e - - 35 35
Amortisation of prepaid TETIEERIE
lease payments B 14 - 20 34
Impairment loss recognised BLEMVT IS R R
in respect of advances to TR Z/JESZTEJ%?E
associates - 13,477 - 13,477
Fair value changes on WEMEZ N TE

investment properties ey - (14,874) - (14,874)
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For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —FEELFF_A=+—HILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. DHEER(E)
Geographical segments B ETH % &5

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the People's Republic of AREBETBRPEARLNE (FBRIN) ([
China, other than Hong Kong, (the “PRC"). The Group's turnover is all derived Bl AR 57% o & D MEFEAREE 2 & %58
from Hong Kong in both years. THREFE o

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets at the WTARGEERZREAERESBERFANE
balance sheet date, and capital additions during the year analysed by the RIGNIRE EFERFTEZ AT ¢

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount

of segments assets Capital additions
PEEERASHE B hn
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FTET FHET
Hong Kong BB 884,756 776,549 - 26,386
The PRC s 222 116 - -
884,978 776,665 - 26,386
7. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 7. =mERE N AAMI S
Turnover represents the aggregate amounts received and receivable, analysed ERBIRDWNER . BETEE  afm T
as follows:
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Turnover EER
Property rental income YRS IA 2,718 2,916
Sales of properties held for sale HERELEYE 67,256 -
69,974 2916
Other revenue Hhias
Interest income from bank deposits IRTTEFFBWA 8,991 7,070
Interest income on advances to associates EFE S N R FIE 2 FI B 4,105 4,855
Sundry income IR A 275 7

13,371 11,932
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Notes to the Financial Statements B SRRz M5t
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 BE - TELFEAf =+ —HIFE
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HIiSEM
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Imputed interest expense relating to interest-free DERREHR R EEREE
loan from minority shareholder FERZ 61 58
9. SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES 9. BIEB=RBIEA
2007 2006
HK$"000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Operating income B 11,519 6,660
Gain on disposal of properties I EME 2 W 1,176 -
Fair value changes on investment properties BREME 2 N EEEE) 63,025 97,024
Less: deferred tax arising from fair value changes o WEME L ATEE
on investment properties FrEE 4 2 IERER IR (11,030) (16,608)
51,995 80,416
Imputed interest expense relating to BRREBIR L EE
interest-free advance from shareholder AEMX - (924)
Current tax FRIA (2,522) (1,063)
Other deferred tax EARAEFIA 341 (203)

62,509 84,886
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. F BT K]

2007 2006
HK$"000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation is stated after charging: AT A 20
Auditors’ remuneration ZERI NS a7 365
Depreciation e 19 35
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TAN G R 33 34
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) BIRA(TBEEENE)
— salaries and allowances — ¥ MRS 3,126 1,843
— retirement benefit costs —RRRE AR 152 87
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MISEHEMERR 2
property held for sale BEEE - 600
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEWE SRIBRER 2
trade receivable DERIEY SEi - 38
and after crediting: WEFA
Imputed interest income relating to BANEEAREENRIEBELZ
interest-free advance to an associate BEMBWA 942 924
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W 86 24
Exchange gain b 5 e 9 8
Gross rental income from properties MEZHE WAL 2,718 2,916
Less: direct operating expenses from properties W FREERSWMAZ IS
that generated rental income during the year BREERX (356) (438)
direct operating expenses from properties that FRWBELERSWAZ
did not generate rental income during the year MEERLERST (2,279) (819)

83

1,659
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For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

11. TAXATION

Current tax FABIA
Hong Kong N
The PRC =8

Overprovision in prior years — Hong Kong

Deferred tax (Note 30) RIERIA (M13E30)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for both years. Taxation in any other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No PRC tax provision has been made as the PRC subsidiaries incurred loss
during the year.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to profit before taxation per
the income statement as follows:

BEFEBEERE B
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11. 818

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FET

8,172 1,805

(96) -
- Q)

8,076 1,804

(271) 225

7,805 2,029

BEBNEH R MEFE 2 5T ERTR R

R 1750 (ZZZTRF : 17.5%):E - F[HA
AEERZMBIEA B R AR 2 ERAH R

s
= o
Eal

BN ENBARRFRELER -
BT A

ES)la i3

AEEBIAS R R Z BADE MR T

2007
Hong Kong The PRC Total
A h &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn % TER % TER %

Profit/(loss) before taxation Banas/ (&) 115,726 (331) 115,395
Tax at domestic profits tax rate BRFIEHRRHE B 20,303 115 (109) (33.0) 20,194 115
Tax effect of share of results BUEBENFEEL

of associates figye (10,939) (9.5) - - (10,939) (9.5)
Estimated tax effect of expenses HEMEHE AR

not deductible in determining Sq ARy 7

profits tax 1,128 1.5 109 33.0 1,837 1.6
Estimated tax effect of income not SHERIGHRRBARY

taxable in determining profits tax Ot it7% (2.126) (2.4) - - (2.126) (2.4)
Estimated tax effect of utlisation HRBTREARANE

of unrecognised tax losses from BRI

prior periods 2) 0.0 - - () 0.0
Estimated tax effect on tax depreciation BB E 2 BE BT E (26) 0.0 - - (26) 0.0
Estimated tax effect of RERNEERZ

unrecognised tax losses EREL7 (617) (0.5) - - (617) (0.5)
Others Hih 180 0.2 (96) (29.0) 84 0.1
Tax charge at the Group's AERRAKEER

effective rate for the year REHEZBETN 7,901 6.8 (96) (29.0) 7,805 6.8
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11. TAXATION (cont'd)

BRI R

R —FEE+F A=A, —HIFE

11, F438 (48)

74 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited ZH#EBE£ERA T

2006
Hong Kong The PRC Total
A f G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT % TET % TR %

Profit/(loss) before taxation BAnas/ (B8) 96,602 (282) 96,520
Tax at domestic profits tax rate BANERHRHE 208 16,949 175 (93) (33.3) 16,856 175
Tax effect of share of results EEBEnTEEL

of associates il (14,855) (15.4) - - (14,855) (154)
Estimated tax effect of expenses SHERIEHRA TR

not deductible in determining SGpA il

profits tax 3,292 34 - - 3,292 34
Estimated tax effect of income SHENEHR BART

not taxable in determining WAz a2

profits tax (2,344) (24 - - (2,344) (24
Estimated tax effect of utilisation BRBT ARG

of unrecognised tax losses from BRzEHDHT 2

prior periods (1,443) (15) - - (1,443) (15)
Estimated tax effect of RERTEERL

unrecognised tax losses ERES % (40) 00 93 333 53 00
Others Aty 470 05 - - 470 05
Tax charge at the Group's REFRFEEER

effective rate for the year HESE RS 2,029 2.1 - - 2,029 21

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 12. KA RERFA AR T

OF THE COMPANY

BHE-ZZEF+_A=1+—HBILEE  REALQ
A SRR ARIE 2 459,741,000 8T (=F
TNEE - 45F)6,123,00087T) ©

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007, net profit of HK$9,741,000 (2006:
net profit of HK$6,123,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

13. DIRECTORS" AND EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments, pension and compensation
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(@

arrangements paid or

payable to the directors and past directors for their services on the

Company were as follows:

Director's fees:
Executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors
— Mr. Lai, Yun-hung
— Mr. Mok, Hon-sang
— Mr. Wong, Tik-tung
— Mr. Wang, Jian-guo

Other emoluments:
Executive Directors
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit schemes contributions

Independent Non-executive Directors

(b) Employees’ emoluments

BEFhE
WITE=R
B ERITES
— MRS E
—REESEL
— MR EE
—FEEEL

HAOE -
WITE=R
e MAEMER
RIREFIFT IR
B ERITES

(b)

During the year, no director of the Company was included in the five

highest paid individuals of the Group (2006: nil) whose emoluments

are set out above. The emoluments payable to the five highest paid

individuals (2006: five individuals) were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit schemes contributions

FraeLHME
RIREFIFT B

The emoluments of individual employees were all less than

HK$1,000,000.

13.

SR NEE 2B

EFHE

AN
7

HREZNAEEEAARBRERBHE
RS EREE S RINe RFBERTH

LN

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
140 10
140 120
140 120
- 110
420 360
420 360

ESME

FR ARREFEFAREBRLLESH

BMAL(ZFBAF :
REX - BHTEEESH
TEAE  BE)WT -

) BB F15E
AL zBE (=

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
1,911 963

90 42

2,001 1,005

BRI 8 2 Me 2 aHER

1,000,000 7T ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements W A5 R aR T AT

For the year ended 3 Ist December, 2007 BE —TELFF+ A=+ HIFFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. B &R

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit BERERBANTDBRBEARNREBRATEA A

attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$107,651,000 FE 165 % F1107,651,000% 7T( = & T X F -
(2006: HK$94,349,000) and the weighted average number of 338,765,987 94,349,000/ ) R F A B 7L @A 2 hisEF

(2006: 338,765,987) ordinary shares in issue during the year. ¥9#1338,765,987 IR (ZZZ /X4 : 338,765,987
B)FHE -
For the years ended 31st December, 2007 and 31st December, 2006, diluted HE_ZZLF+_A=Z=+—AR-_ZZTRHF
earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings per share as there were TZA=T—HLEFE ARFATEHEE
no diluting events during these years. B BRESERN S REARR AR -
15. DIVIDENDS 15. B8
No dividend was paid or proposed during both years 2007 and 2006, nor has —EEF R -ETRNFREFEYE RS E
any dividend been proposed since the balance sheet date. FRBTAARE - BAE AR BRI %
EfAIARE.
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. B ME
HK$'000
THET

The Group KEE
Fair value ~VE
At st January, 2006 RZTTRFE—-HA—H 53,950
Disposals T (5,424)
Fair value changes recognised YRR ER

in income statement NEEEF) 14,874
At 31st December, 2006 and RZBERFE+T_A=+—ARK

1st January, 2007 —ZET+F—-HA—H 63,400
Disposals = (11,011)
Fair value changes recognised U ER R R

in income statement N ES 5,061

At 31st December, 2007 R-EZTLF+-A=+—H 57,450

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 3 1st December, 2007 AEBREVER_ZZ+F+_A=+—AH2
has been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Norton N ER-—REAREEEBE BIAEBHEER
Appraisals Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), independent qualified professional FTENITE BB BB A B ([ EZ R4 1)
surveyors not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals has appropriate RZ AT 2 hEREEMHE - SRR
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the R E 2 AR EGERARESER K
relevant locations. The valuation, which conformed to The Hong Kong Institute IEE 2 RERER - ZIAMAEDETE B SAE
of Surveyors Valuation Standards on Properties (1st Edition 2005) published EREMOMEGELER(ZZEZRFE M) -
by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, was based on open market value WHRAFA T EEREEITEL ©

basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BRI R
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 BE —FE+F+_H=1—HIFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd) 16. IKEWEE (1B)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals AEERIEEEHOF A ARDE S S EE A
or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model fﬁﬁﬁ BEREHNNBLATEEAGNE

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties. As at 3 1st ERBARARIMEREME - R_ZTZLF
December, 2007, the carrying amounts of such property interests amounted to +7 RA=+—H ZEVERZ2EEASER
HK$57,450,000 (2006: HK$63,400,000). 57,450,000/ 70 ( —ZZ 754 163,400,000/ 7T ) ©
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above comprise: PR EYE RESERRE
2007 2006
HK$"000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Properties in Hong Kong held under: REBIZUTHOEEZME
Long lease RAEFFEAD 4,350 3,600
Medium-term lease R ERF 49 53,100 59,800
57,450 63,400
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% ~ Wb K&
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
Buildings B RE Total
B3 SEL k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THET
The Group rEH
Cost BAE
At 1st January, 2006, RZZEEF—H—H-
31st December, 2006, —ZEEXRFt+=-A=1+—H
Ist January, 2007 and —EEHF-A-BK
31st December, 2007 —ZEE+F+-A=+—H 882 1,121 2,003
Depreciation and amortisation 7&K # &
At 1st January, 2006 W-ET GE—H—H 661 1,102 1,763
Charge for the year RNEENR 18 17 35
At 31st December, 2006 and RZZEERFF+=ZA=+—H
Tst January, 2007 ;r—EZL+F—HF—H 679 1,119 1,798
Charge for the year RNEENBR 19 - 19
At 31st December, 2007 RZEZLF+-_A=+—H 698 1,119 1,817
Net book value IRERE
At 31st December, 2007 R-ZBZELF+=-A=+—H 184 2 186

At 31st December, 2006 RZEERNF+_A=+—H 203 2 205




78 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited Z#H#EBXERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements IS EHRET M T
For the year ended 3 Ist December, 2007 B2 —TELFF+ A=+ —HIFFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd) 17. W2~ B Mg (88)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a L - WEREHEIEER LEHEE TG

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: SHERE
Type Basis e BHE
Buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired period g3 TR ERBRFRR - TF
of the land lease and 20 years (VAT & BAE)
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 10% B HERRE 10%
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B HEREE
HK$'000
THERT
The Company PN
Cost RAME
At Tst January, 2006, 31st December, 2006, RZZEZERNF—HF—H  _ETXRF+=-A
Ist January, 2007 and 3 1st December, 2007 —+—H —EZt+F—A—HK
—ZEZ+F+ZRA=+—H 1,117
Depreciation e
At 1st January, 2006 RZZZRF—-H—H 1,101
Charge for the year REFZNGHR 16
At 31st December, 2006, RZZEERF+=ZA=+—8 "
Ist January, 2007 and —“FTEF—A—BK
31st December, 2007 2T+ F+ZRA=+—H 1,117
Net book value BRMEHE
At 31st December, 2007 R=BELtF+=A=+—H -

At 31st December, 2006 NomEXE+-A=+—¢H 3
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18. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

The Group

Cost

At 1st January, 2006

Addition

Transfer to properties held for sale (Note 24)

At 31st December, 2006,
1st January, 2007 and
31st December, 2007

The Group's properties held for development are situated in Hong Kong and

held under medium-term lease.

19. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR

DEVELOPMENT

The Group

Cost

At 1st January, 2006, 31st December, 2006,
Tst January, 2007 and 31st December, 2007

Impairment
At 1st January, 2006, 31st December, 2006,
1st January, 2007 and 3 1st December, 2007

Net book value
At 31st December, 2007

At 31st December, 2006
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18. FHEERYE

HK$'000
FET
rEH
BAE
RZZEZTRF—H—H 23,901
RE 26,386
ERERELEE (FE24) (50,287)

R-ZZBBAE+ZA=+—-H"
—Z22tF-A-BR
—E2tF+=ZA=1+—H -

REBREERYEMNES AT HBLORF
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

19. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT (cont'd)

Notes:

The Group through a wholly-owned subsidiary (“SPV") has a property interest held for
development in Chenghai Royal Garden (the “Development Project”). The site with
an area of approximately 466,662 sq.m. (5,023,150 sq.ft) (the “Land”) is situated at
the estuary of Xinjin River, Longhu District, Shantou, Guangdong Province, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Pursuant to a Contract for Pre-registration of Grant of
State-owned Land Use Rights dated 5th August, 1992 (the “Contract”), SPV has been
granted a pre-registered land use rights of the Land by Shantou City Chenghai District
Planning and State-owned Land Resources Bureau (the “Chenghai Bureau”). The carrying
amount of the Development Project as recorded by the Group (the “Carrying Amount”)
is approximately HK$183.4 million (equivalent to RMB195.1 million). Included in the
Carrying Amount is a payment of approximately HK$49.8 million (equivalent to RMB53
million) to the Chenghai Bureau under the Contract (the “Amount Paid”). After submitting
the application for the land requisition to the Chenghai Bureau and upon the land use
rights of the Land being granted, SPV has to make a final payment of approximately
HK$23.4 million (equivalent to RMB24.9 million) (the “Final Payment”). The deadline of
the application for the land requisition was 4th August, 1993 which had been extended
four times at the request of SPV to 16th July, 2004 (the “Deadline”). The Group believed
that SPV had the following entitlements or options under the Contract: (i) proceeds to
apply for the land requisition of the Land on or before the Deadline and settle the Final
Payment; (i) applies for an extension of the Deadline; or (iii) terminates the Contract and
claim for a refund of approximately HK$46.2 million (equivalent to RMB49.1 million),
being the Amount Paid (the “Amount Claimed").

The Group considered that it was not the suitable time to proceed with the land
requisition and determined to request an extension of time. SPV therefore delivered a
letter dated 19th April, 2004 to the Chenghai Bureau to request an extension of the
Deadline but the Chenghai Bureau refused to accept the letter and advised that such
request should be diverted to Shantou City Longhu District Planning and State-owned
Land Resources Bureau (the “Longhu Bureau”) and their supervisory bureau, Shantou
City Planning and State-owned Land Resources Bureau (the “Shantou Bureau”), since
the authority and administrative power over the Land had already been transferred to
the Longhu Bureau by that time. SPV then delivered letters of the same request to the
Longhu Bureau and the Shantou Bureau. Both bureaus however insisted that they would
not consider the request either and advised SPV to go back to the Chenghai Bureau for
resolving the matter. Given the insistence of the three bureaus in refusing SPV's request
of extension, SPV sought advices and assistance from Shantou Governmental authorities,
but to no avail.

In early July 2004, the Deadline became imminent and having considered that (i)
extension of the Deadline was unlikely in view of the unexpected and undesirable replies
from the bureaus; and (ii) the slowdown of luxury residential market in Shantou, the
Group decided not to proceed with the application for the land requisition and instead
terminated the Contract and requested the Chenghai Bureau to refund the Amount
Claimed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

19. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT (cont'd)

Notes: (cont'd)

Between July 2004 and February 2005, SPV issued four letters of demand to the
Chenghai Bureau to notify the termination of the Contract and requested for a refund
of the Amount Claimed. SPV received three reply letters by which the Chenghai Bureau
denied its obligations for the refund on the allegation that the pre-registration relationship
between the parties under the Contract still existed. The Chenghai Bureau suggested the
following three altenatives for SPV's consideration:

1. SPV proceeds to apply for land requisition of the Land and settle the Final Payment
pursuant to the Contract despite of the Deadline; or

2. SPV applies for a portion of the Land with an area equivalent to the Amount Paid;
or

3. The Chenghai Bureau, upon the application from SPV for the termination of the
Contract, refunds the Amount Paid without interest after the Land is successfully
sold to third parties by the Chenghai Bureau.

Based on the opinion from a legal firm in the PRC, which has taken into consideration the
recent PRC policy for the granting of land issued by the Ministry of Land Resources, the
Group was in doubt as to whether the Chenghai Bureau could effect any of the above
alternatives. Further, if SPV accepted any alternative as suggested, then SPV would be
deemed to have waived its right in the Amount Claimed.

The Group, after considered the further advice from the legal firm, decided not to accept
any of the above alternatives as suggested and initiated legal action against the Chenghai
Bureau for its entittements under the Contract including but not limited to the Amount
Claimed.

Having considered the uncertainty in the recoverability of the Amount Claimed and any
other entitlements under the Contract, the Group made a full provision for an impairment
loss of HK$183,381,000 in the financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2004.

On 19th April, 2005, SPV commenced legal proceedings by issuing a Writ of Summons
against the Chenghai Bureau. SPV requested Shantou City Intermediate People’s Court
(the “Intermediate Court”) for the following issues in particular: (1) Examine the validity of
the Contract; (2) Terminate the Contract; and (3) Order the Chenghai Bureau to refund
the land cost of RMB53 million with interest to SPV. On 27th December, 2005, the
Intermediate Court notified SPV that the trial period had been extended for six months
and the trial would be expected to be adjudicated by the end of June 2006.

On 28th December, 2006, the Intermediate Court made the judgment in favour of SPV as
follows: (1) The Contract and other related agreements and correspondence are null and
void; (2) the Chenghai Bureau shall refund SPV the pre-payment in the sum of RMB53
million and interest accrued from 28th April, 2005 to the date of settlement within 10
days from the effective date of the judgment; and (3) the Chenghai Bureau shall be liable
for the court fees in sum of RMB285,020 and pay the same to SPV directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

19. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR
DEVELOPMENT (cont'd)

Notes: (cont'd)

On 23rd January, 2007, the Chenghai Bureau submitted an application of appeal to the
High People’s Court of Guangdong Province (the “High Court”) and SPV also sent out a
reply to the High Court on 13th February, 2007.

On 27th June, 2007, High Court accepted the application of appeal by the Chenghai
Bureau and made the judgment as follows: (1) The judgment made by the Intermediate
Court on 28th December, 2006 was revoked; (2) The case is remitted to the
Intermediate Court for rehearing. On 22nd August, 2007, the Intermediate Court accepted
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for rehearing the case within six months.

On 18th February, 2008, the Intermediate Court notified SPV that the trial period had

been extended for six months to August 2008.

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group

Cost

At Tst January, 2006, 31st December, 2006,
Tst January, 2007 and 31st December, 2007

Depreciation and amortisation
At 1st January, 2006
Charge for the year

At 31st December, 2006 and
1st January, 2007
Charge for the year

At 31st December, 2007

Net book value
At 31st December, 2007

At 31st December, 2006

BRUHEZER WANEARNERE -

RZZZENFZRA+N\H - AR S SPVEI®E

EEAEAZE-ZZNENA -
20. FENHEFKIA
HK$'000
FET
AEE
RAE
RZEERF—H—HB ZZEZXHF
T-A=+-8 —2TLF-FAR
—EEF+A=+—H 12,958
WER#H
RZEERF—HA—H 3,258
REFZBR 34
R-ZEZRF+_A=1+—8BK
—EE+F—F—H 3,292
ANEE IR 33
R-ZZ+F+-_A=+—H 3,325
ARERE
R-EZTEFE+=-A=+—H 9,633
RZZEERF+-_A=+—A 9,666
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (cont'd)

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
The Group's non-current prepaid lease payments ANEEE X PRRIEREN AL
shown above comprise: HERIBRIE
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: REBZEE LM
Long lease REAMEL 9,433 9,446
Medium-term lease R HEATEAY 200 220
9,633 9,666
21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/ADVANCES TO UR)ESUNCIL: 2oy ANy =S
=~
SUBSIDIARIES NEIF/ @
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
The Company N
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRAD - RANE 192,070 192,070
Capital contribution TE 5,888 5,888
Less: impairment loss recognised in R RIBARIREER L
respect of the investments in subsidiaries BEEE (13,854) (13,854)
184,104 184,104
Advances to subsidiaries B IE A R IR 601,532 682,178
Less: impairment loss recognised in e AL VNI O
respect of the advances to subsidiaries R BIEE 8 (462,998) (464,712)
138,534 217,466

Capital contribution represents imputed interest on interest-free advances to

subsidiaries.

TEEBNMBEAR RS RBMTZRENE -



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/ADVANCES TO
SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

The advances to subsidiaries, net of allowances are unsecured. Included in
the balance as at 31st December, 2007, the amount of HK$120,894,000
(2006: HK$167,462,000) is interest-bearing. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company will not demand repayment within one year from the balance
sheet date and are therefore considered as non-current. The directors of the
Company estimate the investment costs and the advances by discounting
their future cash flow at the prevailing market borrowing rate and considered
impairment loss should be provided as at the balance sheet date at the
amount mentioned above. The directors of the Company consider that the

carrying amount of advances to subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the Group's principal subsidiaries at 3 1st December, 2007 are set

out in Note 38 to the financial statements.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ADVANCES TO 22. PN R B
ASSOCIATES NAIFIE
The Group The Company
r5E F NS
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET TET FAT
(a) Interests in associates (a) BELGEZ
Cost of investments in associates BN RIRERA
— Unlisted in Hong Kong —EBIELTRA 103,252 103,252 - -
Share of post-acquisition profits, PG U EE 25 A -
net of dividends received (Note ii) MR B Wik 8 (B ET i) 287,699 225,900 - -
390,951 329,152 - -
(b) Advances to associates (b) BIEHELTNE
Interest-bearing advances to @ﬁﬁaﬁ AR A
associates (Note iii) T8 (P ek iii) 76,206 90,742 9,500 9,500
Interest-free advances to associates, ﬁﬁ /NS RY
net of allowances (Note iv) (k2R (P FEIV) 48,909 99,979 - -
125,115 190,721 9,500 9,500
Less: impairment loss A BERRZRE
recognised (Note i) Ea (M) (31,724) (83,810) - -
93,391 106,911 9,500 9,500




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ADVANCES TO
ASSOCIATES (cont'd)

(b) Advances to associates (cont'd) (b)

Notes:

0] The movements in provision for impairment loss recognised, which
represents the difference between the carrying amount of the advances to
associates and the expected proceeds, are as follows:

R-B2LF/—TTRF
—HA—HA
FAERZBIERRE
W%%"Mﬂ%ﬁéﬁ IR
NSV ﬁ

At 1st January, 2007/2006

Impairment loss recognised during the year
Advances to associates written off
Write-back of allowance for amount

due from an associate ZEEeRE
At 31st December, 2007/2006 RZTTLFZTTRF
+=—A=+—H

(i) The investment properties of the associates were revalued at 31st
December, 2007 on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Norton Appraisals. The Group recognised an interest in the fair value gain
on the investment properties of the associates of HK$52 million (net of
deferred tax impact of HK$11 million) as at 31st December, 2007. Details
are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

(i) Except for an amount of HK$9,500,000 (2006: HK$9,500,000) which
bears interest at 6.75% (2006: 6.75%), the remaining balance of interest-
bearing advance to an associate bears interest at Prime minus 2.75%. The
advances are unsecured and the Group will not demand repayment within
one year from the balance sheet date and are therefore considered as non-
current. The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of advances to associates approximate to their fair values.

(iv)  The interest-free advances are unsecured and the Group will not demand
repayment within one year from the balance sheet date and are therefore
considered as non-current. The directors of the Company estimate the fair
value of the interest-free advances by discounting their future cash flow
at the prevailing market borrowing rate. The directors of the Company
consider that the carrying amounts of interest-free advances to associates
approximate to their fair values.

(v)  During the year, the Group has received HK$1,720,000 (2006: Nil) in
respect of advances to former associates, for which the Group has provided
full impairment losses in previous years. The impairment losses provided
were reversed accordingly.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31st December, 2007 are AF

set out in Note 39 to the financial statements. Hy
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Notes to the Financial Statements ISR R EE
For the year ended 3 Ist December, 2007 B2 —TELFF+ A=+ —HIFFE
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ADVANCES TO 22. Bt N AR BTE
ASSOCIATES (cont'd) ANAIFIE(E)
(b) Advances to associates (cont'd) (b) BfIEELENE (&)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's REEEENE 2 MBERBRINT

associates is set out below:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total assets BEMBRE 1,598,306 1,426,413
Total liabilities BEEHE (551,197) (556,208)
Net assets BEFE 1,047,109 870,205
Group's share of net assets of associates AEFEGEEQAREEFE 390,951 329,152
Turnover e 58,845 46,465
Profit for the year RNE A 178,324 228,390
Group's share of results of associates AEERGERFERERE QT
for the year (Note 9) F4E (7T 9) 62,509 84,886
23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 23. Al HESRERE
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
The Group rEE
Club debenture SHEES 270 270
The Company ZANG|

Club debenture SEES - 270




Notes to the Financial Statements
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24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group AEE

Properties held for sale FHEHEWE

Disposals HE

Transfer from properties held R EERYEEA
for development (Note 18) (MisE18)

Less: impariment loss recognised B BERZRERE

At 31st December, 2007, the directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amounts of the properties held for sale with reference to current market
situation and the estimated selling price of the properties held for sale provided
by Norton Appraisals. No impairment loss was made by reference to the
recoverable amount of the properties held for sale (2006: HK$600,000).

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group and the Company
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's and the Company's debtors, deposits and prepayments approximate

to their fair values.

The Group
Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$2,000
(2006: HK$2,000) comprising mainly rental receivables which are billed in

advance and settlements are expected upon receipt of bills.
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2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
78,483 28,796
(22,179) -
- 50,287
56,304 79,083
- (600)
56,304 78,483
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(cont'd)

The following is the aged analysis of trade debtors, net of impairment, at the

balance sheet date:

Within 30 days =+HA

The Group's trade debtors are balances with carrying amounts of HK$2,000
(2006: HK$2,000) which are past due at the balance sheet date for which
the Group has not provided impairment loss. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

26. ADVANCE TO THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The Group and the Company

The advance to the ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of the Group's and the Company's advance to the ultimate holding

company approximates to its fair value.

The Group and the Company do not hold collateral over the balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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27. Be& MIREZFRIER

The Group The Company
AEEH RRF

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTER FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITFER RS 2,424 1,400 508 611
Time deposits EHFER 271,800 186,500 271,800 183,300
274,224 187,900 272,308 183911

The time deposits of the Group and the Company had maturity within 3

months and carry interests at prevailing market deposit rates.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's and the Company's cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair

values.

28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

The Group and the Company

There were no trade payables included in creditors and accruals as at 31st
December, 2007 and 2006. The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company's creditors and accruals

approximate to their fair values.

29. LOAN FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The Group
The loan is unsecured, repayable on demand and non-interest bearing. The
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount of the loan from

minority shareholder approximates to its fair value.

REBRARRRZEMFRN =EARIE - X
RERTISFERMETER

ARBEERB/AEERARA ZRENREF
FIER 2 FRE SRR EE QA FERES °

28. [EMERIE KRBT E M

AEEREDT
MRZEZLER_TTXE+_A=+—0H &
NERIBEREERITEBEREMNE HRIE - AR
REERRAREBRAAR ZENEREREE
AZEESEEE AN TEES -

29. LEIRER

REE

ZESREER  REREFEER RS - ARF
EERA/PVBBERRERZEHSREEL N FER
T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITIES

The Group

BRI R

BE-FErF+-A=+—HLEE
30. BXERIBRE

AEE

AT RASERAERBERRARER CTE
EREFIA(AE) BREERELEE)

The following are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) and assets recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

periods:

Revaluation Accelerated
of investment tax
properties  depreciation Tax
REME mE losses Total
B BETE BEEE A3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEx FEx TERT
At Tst January, 2006 R-BEAE—F—8 (1,499) 2 465 (1,010)
Credit (charge) to the income BA(B)RERE
statement for the year (Note 11) ek (fFE11) 245 (5) (465) (225)
At 31st December, 2006 and RZZERF+-A=+—H
1t January, 2007 RZEE+E-F—H (1,254) 19 - (1,235)
Credit (charge) to the income BANE)AFE
statement for the year (Note 11) Weaak (s 11) 147 4 128 271
At 31st December, 2007 RZBBtF+ZA=+-H (1,107) 15 128 (964)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred taxation assets
and (liabilities) have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

taxation balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred taxation assets IEIEFG IR E B
Deferred taxation liabilities FRERIAEEFE

At the balance sheet date, the Group had not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses of HK$197,813,000 (2006: HK$201,387,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may

be carried forward indefinitely.

REEABRZE2VME BTEERBEER
(BE) BLIRSY - (EMISHHAR 2 ELERIBA
O

2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FAT
143 19
(1,107) (1,254)
(964) (1,235)

REER - AREUTEBARTRENZE  AEE
EHFEE8197,813,0008 L (Z T RF ¢
201,387,000 7T ) BERIELETIBEE  RIERZ
BRI A WA T AR E -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

The Group and the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Authorised:
At Tst January, 2006, 31st December, 2006,
Tst January, 2007 and 31st December, 2007

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January, 2006, 31st December, 2006,
Ist January, 2007 and 31st December, 2007

AEERALT
SRAEE00 BT LBK
R

RZZE F-A—-R-

“ETREHZAZH-A

BEARME
R-2ERE—A-R
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BE-PELEF A= —FILEE

31. AR
Number Share
of shares capital
ROHAE [
HK$'000
TER
50,000,000,000 500,000
338,765,987 3,388
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Notes to the Financial Statements SRR M EE
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 B2 —FF+Ff - A=+—HIFE
32. RESERVES 32. 1
The Group NEH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the REBRAFERBAFE 2 #ESEREZE)
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes PRI RSB RKED
in equity.
The Company AT
Contribution
from Share Accumulated
shareholders premium losses Total
REEE RAMEE RiEE @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER FER TERT
At 1st January, 2006 R-ZE 5—F—R 117,054 495,160 (26967) 585,247
Profit for the year AEE R - - 6,123 6,123
At 31st December, 2006 and RZETRETA=T—H
Tt January, 2007 R-ZZ+5—f—B 117,054 495,160 (20,844) 591370
Profit for the year AEE R - - 9,741 9,741
At 31st December, 2007 R-EE+F+-A=1+-H 117,054 495,160 (11,103) 601,111
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Company had no reserves RANBEERE AN TEELFEN T
available for distribution as at 31st December, 2007 and 2006. NE+ZR=+— HIMT{ﬁ’\/ﬁZfﬁﬁ
33. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 33. TEIFRER S

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group had not entered into any HE-_ZEE+HF+-_A=1t—HILFE ~&£H
major non-cash transactions. WEIEAEEFRERS o

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2006, the Group had the following major HE_ZZF+_A=1+—HILFE  K&£H
non-cash transactions: BT NI EEFERERSH

The Group had incurred costs for additions of properties under development AREBCELEAREERERPYWEZRAY
of approximately HK$26,386,000 of which approximately HK$7,117,000 had 26,386,000 T, H 1 2 5t A FE T BRI K JE 5
not been paid as at 31st December, 2006 which was included in creditors and ERZHN7117000B TR _EZF+ A
accruals. =T —HERZNM -



Annual Report 2007 —ZEZ+HFFH 93

Notes to the Financial Statements RS ER R M5
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 BE_FLTLF+ A=+ —HIFE
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, = ETHA ESE
The Group as lessee KREBEREBA
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Minimum lease payments under operating leases RERNE@EIRANEDFE L
in respect of office premises during the year EEBHRKEES 83 78

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments under REFER - REBERAATBUR S EMRL) 2 RIEE A

non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows: ER T EARE T -
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FR - 83

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of EEMENVEERETEEREETHOEYEERN
.

its office premises. Lease is negotiated for a fixed term of two years. 2 MHOBWMEER—K
The Group as lessor AEBEREHBEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the REER > AEEER T AR&EHESEER
following future minimum lease payments: HESE
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Within one year —FR 329 461
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_ZERF (BIEERME) - 329
329 790

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate annual rental REBZEREMERRAEEFIFEEELN6%Z
yields of approximately 6% on an ongoing basis. All of the properties held have HEEWE - FHEZWEHDHB PRI LT BB

committed tenants not exceeding approximately three years. H=F 2184 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following capital commitment:

Contracted but not provided for EETAEREE
Acquisition of 50% shareholding in and
shareholder’s loan due from
Canaria Holding Limited and the loan

due from Earn Elite Development Limited

The acquisition was terminated subsequent to the balance sheet date as the
vendor and debt vendor could not fulfil the conditions precedent by 31st
January, 2008. For further details, please refer to Note 40 to the financial

statements and the Company's announcement dated 1st February, 2008.

The Company did not have any significant capital commitments at 31st
December, 2007 and 2006.

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(i)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the "MPF

Scheme"); and

(i)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “Top-up

Scheme”).

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their respective

trustees accordingly.

BRI R

BE-FE G o — A
35. B AHIE

REER - ANEEHEA N EAAIE

B Canaria Holding Limited 22
5000 i e B e 2
BRRERRBTER
BRARIENZER

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET
10,300 -

HMRETREBESTRER_-_TZTN\F—A
=t RAETRREGNT  ZBEBERNEER
BRI - BEZE—FFIE - F2AMBERE
M40 RARBR _FENF_A—HB 2D

REZETLFEN_FTERF+_A=+—H K
NEWEERE AR

36. RRAEFIET S
AR ERATBRIEFIF S
() EBLOILE 485 HMIE S 8D T RE

ZrfaeRtE (REEAE ) &

(i) BREDIE 426 R RKEEIGRHI TR
EzntaestEl (Tfestsll) -

swEeF 8 MR B R ERHKG S %W
HrtBlz BEDREHRE B 2 XEAERE -
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36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (cont'd)

The MPF Scheme was available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with at
least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong Kong.
Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's relevant
income. The statutory maximum level of relevant income for contribution
purpose is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their length
of service with the Group, but the benefit was required by law to be preserved
until the retirement age of 65. Forfeited contributions of MPF Scheme cannot

be used by the Group to offset the existing level of contributions.

The Top-up Scheme was available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the Top-
up Scheme were made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of staff's basic
salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group’s mandatory
contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns after completing
10 years of service or more, or attaining the retirement age, or were entitled
at a reduced scale between 30% to 90% of the Group's contributions after
completing a period of service of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The
Top-up Scheme allowed any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for
any staff member who subsequently left the Top-up Scheme prior to vesting
fully in such contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level

of contributions of the Group.

The Group's cost for the MPF Scheme charged to consolidated income
statement for the year amounted to HK$152,000 (2006: HK$87,000).

During both years, no employee of the Group was entitled to the benefit of
the Top-up Scheme and no contributions had been made by the Group to the

Top-up Scheme.

Annual Report 2007

B H%5 R B et

BE-ETrEt—A=+—HIEE
36. RIREFIFTEI ()

BESHEINTHME 18 EARTEREBRD
60 AZAKERESMN - AEEIRIEEE 2B
ABAEH 5% 2 3K - MRS - BEETEA
BIKFE ERASA 2000087 - TaENRAEE
ZRAEEH - [ B9 AT EYS 10000 48 5 M 5E
RIETEIR - EREED - AR EGRBRR
RFEHR 6558 T A EM c REE T BABES
STEIT 2 8RR - LUE SR A 2 BUKE -

AT B AT A 3B 20,0008 7L K AF
ERBRAFZERELN - REBDREEE 2 E
RS RARBER - 1FH 5% + 7.5%3% 10% 2
R BIMET . WREAEBRERESTEIE
oz B R - B B RIS 10 F s A L E|
R KA A B BT ENS 10000 78 S [ s [F e At
® MREERHIFETT I0EZRERAR
iR L I S 30% 2= 90% A S B 5K o i B AT
BB AREEAST D2 UER (BN A E BT
MR ES 2B ERATR L A R B 2B E M IE
2 ) ARSI AR E BB A 2 HFKE -

AREERFERAFBTEES BN GRS RS RNBRZ
B A152,000/87T( —ZZ N4 1 87,0008 7T) °

REAMEFER - AEEMEREESZEREE
FHEI - A SR B 2 At B TR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into transactions with related parties which, in the
opinion of the directors, were carried out in normal commercial terms and in

the ordinary course of the Group's business as shown below:
Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Note 13(a) to the

financial statements.

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with related parties:

96 ChiCheung Investment Company, Limited Z#EBE¥HFMR A

BRI R

B EEL A = —HIFEE
37. BEATR S

AEBEBHEMEALILTIIRS  MEERRB
BRRZINASEREREEBETIREREE

TEEBABZMENMTEREAMT13()KE

R AEELREEATETTIRS -

2007 2006

HK$"000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Rental paid to a fellow subsidiary (Note i) SR FRRMBARZHS (D 83 78

Interest income on advances to associates (Note i)~ EVTEE A N FIZRIE 2 K S WA (M aEii) 4,105 4,855
Imputed interest income relating to interest-free BNBENRIREFIELZ

advance to an associate BEMNSUA 942 924

5,130 5,857

Notes:

0] Rental was paid to Chinese Estates, Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Chinese
Estates for the lease of office premises. The lease was entered into in the ordinary
course of business with reference to market rates.

(i) Interest was charged on outstanding balance during the year.

None of the related party transactions constituted discloseable non-exempted
connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected transactions

under the Listing Rules.

Details of the balances with related parties as at the balance sheet date are set
out in Note 22 and Note 26 and Note 29.

BEE

() HEXNTEABXZZEMBAREAEXH
RARHEERMPAE - ZHERZ2EMHERIR
EEEERIET -

(i) FEREFARRERTH -

RIEETHRA - BEA LR HEEBRATHE
ZIHFRRAERF YRR ERERS



Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the
following list discloses only the particulars of those subsidiaries as at 31st

December, 2007 which principally affect the results or assets of the Group.
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38. TEMBARIFIE

m

Ha|

ARREZRRILZMMBRARERESHD
BRIUE ITRABER-_FTTLF+
St BEREECIREREERERYEZM

B ZFS -

[
o

Fully paid
Place of Class of share/ share capital/
incorporation registered registered
Name of or operation capital held capital
subsidiaries BaLAT iR,/ BRRE/
WEAREE Bk EMRARR ERRE
Comford Tower Limited Republic of Liberia Ordinary US$1
ME BB HAME LER 15T
Country Homes Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200
36 LB 20087
Non-voting HK$164,400

deferred ordinary
ERFE 164,400/ 7

EEEER
Non-voting HK$1,000

deferred founder
ERFE 1,000/870

BRI AR
Country Honour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
BERRAT BiE EER 28T
Famell Venture Inc. British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1
RBRERRNS LB 157
First Castle Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1
ERERARNE EER 157t

Proportion of
nominal value
of paid-up capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
NG iiEs:
HRRA/ZRRE Principal activities
HEZED TEXK
Directly Indirectly
B# BF
- 100% Investment holding
RERR
- 100% Property investment
NERE
- 100% Property investment
NERE
- 100% Investment holding
REAR
- 100% Property investment

NERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B S R MTEE
For the year ended 3 Ist December, 2007 B2 —TELFF+ A=+ —HIFFE
38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. TEMB ARG (&)
(cont'd)
Proportion of
nominal value
Fully paid of paid-up capital/
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ registered capital
incorporation registered registered held by the Company
Name of or operation capital held capital KRRk
subsidiaries AL FrisRe,/ BERER/ BRRA/ZRERK Principal activities
WEAREH HEEnY AMRAER AR A HEZEDL TEEY
Directly Indirectly
EE 583
Konshing Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 51% Property development
BEMEERAF BiE LER 1,000/ 7 NEER
Lucky Guide Intemational Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6 - 51% Property investment
Limited BB LEK 68T MERE
BHERER AT
Moregift Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% - Property holding
&R LER 10,0008 VESIE]
Sanewing Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Property trading
ARREARDA i gl 1000077 ESE
Union Spark Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
VRBRBERRA BB LEK 287 REER
View Success Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
Limited i LER 28T and trading
P REERRA NEREREE

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting at the end of the year R AR AEAAT BT /8 A R 45 R S F A IR R A7 1
or at anytime during the year. EfEERR o
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For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 BE_FLTLF+ A=+ —HIFE
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 39. T E2WENRIFFIE
The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all of which are NTEINHEREE R ENEEREETE Y
unlisted corporate entities, which principally affect the results or assets of the BANT (2B AIELTZ ARIERE) 255 ¢
Group:
Percentage
Fully paid of equity
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ attributable
incorporation registered registered indirectly
Name of and operation capital held capital to the Group Principal
associates EMAILK Fisie,/ BERE/ FEERERERS activities
BENREH fed=$iuk R Es-F] MR A REBAL TERK
Eamn Elite Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 50%  Property investment
BTERBRAR BE EBR 2B NERE
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,999 33'/,9%  Property investment
EREXBRAR BE ERR 99997 NERE
Healthy Point Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 50%  Property investment
BIBRAF BE LEK 28T MERE
Non-voting preferred HK$1

BRRRERAR 187
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

0)

(ii)

(iil)

On 17th January, 2008, the Group entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with Victory Gain Holdings Limited (“Victory

Gain"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinese Estates, under which
the Group agreed to sell and Victory Gain agreed to purchase (i) the
issued shares of each of Moregift Investments Limited, New Hong Kong
Inc., Paperkit International Limited, Pinball International Limited, Star
Glory Limited, Florta (B.V.l) Limited, Grade World Investment Limited,
Hackney Investments Limited, Paton (B.V.l.) Limited, Perfect Country
Limited, Reeden Limited, Shing Ping Development Ltd., Evergo China
Group Limited, Comford Tower Limited, Country Homes Limited,
Country Honour Limited, Dynamic Master Limited, E-Trade.Com Limited,
Farnell Venture Inc,, First Castle Limited, Jade Mountain Limited, Jinline
Investments Ltd., Kinloch Investments Corp. and Sanewing Investments
Limited (the “Sale Companies”) (which, together with their respective
subsidiaries and associated companies, are collectively referred to as
the “Target Companies”); (ii) all sums due by the Target Companies
(excluding those whose shares of which shall not be sold directly or
indirectly to Victory Gain) (the "Excluded Companies”) to the other
members of the Group (excluding the Target Companies but including
the Excluded Companies”) as at the date of completion. The disposal
is subject to the approval of the independent shareholders of the

Company.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
17th January, 2008, 5th February, 2008 and 6th March, 2008.

During the year, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose a godown unit of a property held for sale at a
consideration of HK$17 million. The disposal was completed on 16th
January, 2008.

As announced by the Company on Tst February, 2008, the major
transaction made on 23rd March, 2007 concerning acquisition of 50%
shareholding in and shareholder’s loan due from Canaria Holding Limited
and the loan due from Earn Elite Development Limited was terminated
as the vendor and debt vendor could not fulfil the conditions precedent
by 31st January, 2008. The termination of the transaction would not
have any material adverse effect on the business operation and financial

position of the Group.

BTSRRI ot

BE—FE+HFL _A=+—HIFFE

40.

0)

(ii)

(iil)

HEHBEIR

RZZETZNF-—A++tH AEEEE
ABEZ2BEWBARBGSIERERATR
(IBEDALAEKRGEE RS - Bt &
SEERELHEMBEERESBAG
Moregift Investments Limited - New Hong
Kong Inc. » Paperkit International Limited
Pinball International Limited + Star Glory
Limited, Florta (B.V.l) Limited + jn ttt #% &
B MR A + Hackney Investments Limited *
Paton (B.V.l.) Limited - Perfect Country
Limited ~ (R FBERAR] - AFERARA
A BEeFEZERERRAA - Comford
Tower Limited » Country Homes Limited -
B & & PR 2 7] * Dynamic Master Limited
E-Trade.Com Limited - Farnell Venture

Inc. ~ First Castle Limited * Jade Mountain

Limited * Jinline Investments Ltd. + #& 5 1%
BEERAFIREEBEGRAR(HER
)(LHﬁ%R@ZWEAD /N
CHEBAIEERARD 2R BITR

Tﬁ S BEARI(IEEERO B2 E
BEREEHETEBE2AR) ([BRIMRED
MTERK B BT AE R AN BE MR B (T B 15
BEAREBERINAT) ZFIARIE ° H
EARFARATE N RFERE o

BRIz S B2
ZNF—A++R - ZZEZENF-AAA
R=FE\F= AR 2R -

ER-AEEFT Y -EHEERZELE —
BER/IELEMEZEREN RER
17,000,000 &7 « ZBHEERZZZEN
F—A+ BT -

BUARRBR_TZENF_A—BHAAQ
mRZEEL E AZ+=H3WE
Canaria Holding Limited 2 500 % ## K H f&
NZBRREFARBS ERBR QG ERS
ZERMAUZEERS  BRESRE
BEARENR_ZEENF-H=+—H7
BAT R IGHE MR I - RIER SEAE
B 2 EBEE R BRI TG EAKAEM
BRIFZE -



Annual Report 2007 —ZFZEtFFH 101

Notes to the Financial Statements B SRRz M5t

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2007 P _EE+FEF A=A, —HIFE

41. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL 41. IR R
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board EE2CR ST N\F = AXNBHEREET]E
of Directors on 6th March, 2008. BT HRE -



Five-Year Financial Summary

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five years

is as follows:

Results

Turnover

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Taxation
Profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total assets and liabilities

Minority interests

Net assets to equity

holders of the Company

Net asset value per share (HK$)

Net assets per share to equity
holders of the Company (HK$)

Number of shares issued

£ |

L

BT,/ (&58)
B

REREHN/ (BR)
5L -

ARRBAHEA
DEBRER

BERAHE

BERH
B8

ARRBAFAEA
EEEERE

BREEFE(ET)

ARRBAFE AR
SREEFEGET)

e

HFEHHHE

For the year ended 31st December,

BEt-A=1-ALEE
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AEEBERFZFE  BERBEHIILT

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT FET FET THEL
69,974 2916 3,370 18,870 890
115,395 96,320 119,816 (168,416) (776)
(1,805) (2,029) (398) (980) 558
107,590 94,291 119,418 (169,396) (218)
107,651 94,349 121,518 (169,396) (218)
(61) (58) (2,100)
107,590 94,291 119,418 (169,396) (218)
As at 31st December,
R+=A=+-H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FHT FTHEL FTHEL THEL
884,978 776,665 683,862 515,969 630,828
(16,939) (16,225) (17,713) (64,400) (61,076)
868,039 760,440 666,149 451,569 569,752
1,084 1,023 965 40,312 45,100
869,123 761,463 667,114 491,881 614,852
2.56 224 1.97 1.60 2.02
2.57 225 1.97 1.74 2.18
338,765,987 338,765,987 338,765,987 282,305,987 282,305,987
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Schedule of Principal Properties FEWEMNFR

A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

XEME
Approx. gross
floor area Category of  Group's
(square feet) the lease interest
Location Lot number HREEEEAH Usage term £H
b BE b B} 4R 5% (FFFR) A% HEER bR
1. Unit B on 3rd Floor Certain parts or 528* Residential Long 51%
No. 1 South Lane shares of and in Section A F= KA
Western District of Sub-section 1 of
Hong Kong Section C and
AR Sub-section 2 of Section
ME1R3EBE C of Inland Lot No. 1300
AHLER 130055 C R 1 9B
ZABRNCER2DEK
ZET B S nFE
4 Area represents the saleable area.
EEREAEE -
2. Various Portions of Certain parts or shares of 541,048"  Industrial Medium 33'/.%
No. 1 Hung To Road and in Kwun Tong Inland T R
Kwun Tong Lot No. 415
Kowloon, Hong Kong BEAME 415 5.2
(Comprising 399 workshop AT DS
units and 77 car parking
spaces)
BB NEEE
IEEE 15
=T
(BHE399 B TIH B
K778 47)

Exclusive of all car parking spaces area.

TeEMmAEL ZEE -
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Schedule of Principal Properties FEYEMIR

A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd)
AR (B)

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
HEEEBRNH
(FHER)

Category of  Group's
the lease interest
term 58
HEEER  FrihER

Lot number
i BR 4 5%

Location

b B

Usage
ii}=

3. Tuen Mun Centre Certain parts or shares of 20,048* Commercial Medium 50%

Cinema Portion of Ground
Floor, 1st to 3rd Floors, Flat
Roof on 4th Floor, Portion

and in Castle Peak Town
Lot No. 57
BILTIHEL 57 57 2

[CES

]

of external walls of Cinema and ~ &H T30 %8
Shops Nos. 14 and 16 on
Ground Floor

Nos. 2-8 Wo Ping Path
Nos. 7-35 Yan Ching Street
Tuen Mun, New Territories
Hong Kong

I

BB AEM
MFIE2-85% -
CHEE7-35551 T -

18 E 38R
4BFE

BB (R BB oM K

N 1455 % 16 5% P A

* Exclusive of the Flat Roof area on 4th Floor.

TEIE4ABT A ZHE

4. Gemstar Tower
Unit C (including
storeroom thereof) on
13th Floor and the Roof
together with 50 car
parking spaces on 1st
to 3rd Floors
No. 23 Man Lok Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BEAFL
BB
RE4ET23 5%
13 CE(BE#DE)
RREBEH1EE3E
50 fEE iz

Certain parts or shares of 4,850* Godown Medium 100%
and in Hung Hom Inland =¥~} R HA

Lot No. 545

AR ER 545 582

AT RbD SRR

Exclusive of the area of all car parking spaces and the Roof.

TEFEMAEMRKRA ZHEHE
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TEYEWR

A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd)

LEME(B)

Location

o B

5. Inter-Continental Plaza
The whole of 3rd Floor
and the adjacent Flat
Roof and the whole of
8th Floor
No. 94 Granville Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong
AR
BBNELDHE
NS EEE 94 5%
IBRERBETA
AR 8ERE

* Exclusive of the Flat Roof area.

TeEFazmE -

6.  Sim City of Chung Kiu
Commercial Building
Unit 301 on 3rd Floor
Nos. 47-51 Shantung Street
Mong Kok, Kowloon
Hong Kong
MEHMERNE
EBRH™
BEENELA
IR AT 47-51 5%
3301 E

Approx. gross

floor area

(square feet)
Lot number HEEEENE Usage
h ER AR SR (FAR) Rz

22,204* Commercial
[EES

Certain parts or shares of
and in Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 10603
NBEAHEER 10603 5% 2
ETEm sk

453  Commercial

[CES

Certain parts or shares of
and in Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 10253
BENMIER 10253552
aTEmeknEE

Category of
the lease
term

GEREE

Long
=3

Long
=3

—ZZTLFFHR 105

Group’s
interest

L]
Frib iz

50%

100%
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A.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont'd)
WEWMEE)

Approx.
site area Category of Group's
(square feet) the lease interest
Location Lot number HEEBEOY Usage term £H
i BERES (FAR) B# HEER it
7. So ShiTau Certain parts or shares of 370,912 Agricultural® Medium 100%
Clear Water Bay and in Lot Nos. 2, 4, 7, 8 B  Hj
New Territories and 9 in Demarcation
Hong Kong District 464, So Shi Tau
B Clear Water Bay
BB HRLER New Territories
Hong Kong
BB IUE/KEHRLR
2L 464 572 - 4
78ROz ETHMN
DAV
* Land held for undetermined future use.
FEBNAREBERRMEZ T -
8.  MaVYauTong* The Remaining Portion of Lot 24,675  Agricultural Medium 100%
Sai Kung No. 453 in B¥ i HA
New Territories Demarcation District 401
Hong Kong Po Lam Road
BEWA L Ma Yau Tong, Sai Kung
B SR New Territories
Hong Kong
BRI E SR

EWEELEL1D 401 57
HER 453 SRER T 2R

A sale and purchase agreement for disposal of the property was made after 3 1st December, 2007.
—HERMEBEEH RN ST F+ A=+ —HEER -
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B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FEREWE

Location

o B

1. Gemstar Tower
Units C to G on 16th Floor,
Units A to F "~ on 17th Floor
(inclusive of Roofs of Units
D and E), and Units Ato D
on 18th Floor
No. 23 Man Lok Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
Hong Kong
SEFAFD
ABNEEAW
REE 2357
161 CEGEAL -
17EAZE PN (B
DREBRIZKRE)
M I18EAZDEN

Lot number

h B 4 5%

Certain parts or shares of and
in Hung Hom Inland

Lot No. 545

ALY B ER 545 57
2T by Sk iy ER

Exclusive of Roofs area of Units D and E on 17th Floor.

TEFE17TBDREEMRA ZHEE -

Annual Report 2007

TEYEWR

Approx. gross
floor area
(square feet)
HREEEEAH
(FHR)

79,361%

* The disposal of Unit E and the Roof on 17th Floor was completed after 31st December, 2007.
17TBEBMRRAENRZEZLET A=+ —HETKEERS

Usage
R®

Godown

PPN
BA

—EZTLFFHR 107

Group’s
interest

58
Frib Rz

100%
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C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FHERRME

Approx.
site area Group's
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number M AR E TR B Usage £H
b2 b B} 4R 5% (FHER) A% Frib Rz
1. No. 34 Hill Road The Remaining Portion of Section C 2,146 Residential* 51%
Western District and Remaining Portion of Sub-section Fx*
Hong Kong 1 of Section C of Inland Lot No. 1300
HEAR MHhER 1300 5% CE &2 T 8615 [
B 34 5% CE 1 DERER TR
* The property comprises a 7-storey building completed in 1958, which was held by the Group for the future redevelopment purpose. The

property was reclassified under prepaid lease payments upon application of HKAS 17.
ZYEERE—ERN 1958 FNLERET  WAKEREERARRERZA - EATESHENFE 17HN - RYEREFHEERE
NHERIE -
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